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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by The Stock Exchange.
GEM-Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of WLS Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to WLS Holdings
Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: i. the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; ii. there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and iii. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after

due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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“CIRCLE AND SQUARE” CONCEPT

In this intensely competitive world, the winners are those who take the initiative
to build a solid foundation before dedicating efforts on self improvement and

enhancing business efficiencies.

WLS Holdings Limited (‘WLS’ or the ‘Company’), with excellent business
acumen, takes a proactive stance on incorporating the ‘Circle and Square’
concept into its corporate mission. The underlying meaning of having a ‘Circle’
encompassing a square symbolises the importance of offering smooth services

and flexibility to external parties, and internally, the attention to details.

Cautiousness and striving after perfection are equally important. That is why
we shall adhere unwaveringly to our principle of perpetual emphasis and

continuous improvement on ‘Safety, Quality and Efficiency’.

WLS practises and preaches the theory of ‘Circle and Square’ by integrating
flexibility into every step of its operations as well as abiding by every legal

regulation and restriction.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

# &2 H =1 H I B B4EE Financial Year Ended 30 April
ZRE)N\E FE LA CRTINAE TR AR
T#T THTT THTT THIT

(E71)

2008 2007 2006 2005
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
(restated)

CES Turnover 220,006 148,503 176,393
B A i A Profit before taxation 7,533 6,424 5,467
ANTEIRESFFA N Profit for the year

JEAG A AFBE attributable to equity

i £ holders of the Company 6,646 4,517 4,147
(gl Earnings per share

(#5Il1) (HK cent) 1.44 0.99 0.91

Vi Notes:

1. ARFAPRZEE—FE LA A = HEHZHE 1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 July 2001 and became the
ML o P A EE— A — ] = A H A holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 November 2001 as
ZERER ([ EREFE]) #2513 & 4 i i a result of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the Company’s Prospectus dated 30
A A — ] A= H 2 B A A November 2001 (the “Prospectus”).

ZRAZFERL A o

2. A T ZR R Y A i 2 B 1 0 R B e A 2. The above financial summary prior to 2004 has not been adjusted for the effect on the
R (AR G IR 71 2) 2 R 20T (E changes in the accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
B UG R A Al AT T A statements as the directors considered that it is not practical to do so.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Chairman

I have great pleasure to present this year’s annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”). Due to the continuous boom in the Hong
Kong economy as well as enormous business opportunities in the hyper-active
construction activities in our overseas markets such as Macau and China, the
Group’s business activities produced satisfactory results during the year ended
30 April 2008.

During the period under review, the turnover of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$184 million, representing a decrease of about 16% as
compared with a turnover of approximately HK$220 million of the preceding
year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 30 April 2008
amounted to approximately HK$5,700,000, representing a decrease of about
14% as compared to about HK$6,600,000 of last year.

As I reported in last year’s annual report, the Group has attained a level at which
the various business units coalesce into a balanced business portfolio after a
period of business diversification, both geographically and in product range.
During the financial year ended 30 April 2008, the Group consolidated on its
previous developed Macau market and further increased our market share in
the scaffolding and GRC (Glass Reinforced Cement) themed cladding services

sectors in Macau.
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In terms of product range, we are no longer just relying on the provision of
scaffolding services as our dominant line of business. In fact, through the
period of diversification and market development of the last few years, we
have successfully developed into a renowned specialist service provider in
GRC themed cladding, themed painting of artefacts, theme park signages,
high-quality fitting out works, access equipment and parapet railings whilst

maintaining our position as a market leader in the scaffolding trade.

Due to the foresight of our management, we were one of the first few Hong
Kong businesses setting up branch offices in Macau as far back in 2002 to
tap into the forecast vast construction developments’ resources and business
opportunities. Our business results validated the correctness of this business
decision as we established our reputation in providing impeccable specialist
services in a wide range of construction-related products and professional
services to large-scale Macau projects, the most notable of which is the

Venetian Macau in Cotai.

In the face of the current vastly increasing global demand for natural resources,
the Group had also focused its attention on exploring the business opportunities
in the field of natural resources and its related businesses in the African
continent. An equity joint venture was formed with MKP Capital Berhad,
our Malaysian partner, aiming to develop business in natural resources and
participate in infrastructure and property development projects in Africa. In
fact, several trips had been made by senior management of the Group to a
number of African countries to evaluate and conduct feasibility studies on
the viability of developing granite concessions and other mineral resources.
The findings and conclusions from such trips were quite positive. In addition,
two memoranda of understanding were signed with two respective renowned
Chinese enterprises to co-operate in tendering for large-scale overseas

construction and civil engineering projects.




B2

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

AR R o AN R 2 AR
T332 38 5 T VLT e B A B B B R IR T A I o
FH L AP K R BRI R A
HA BORE 5 NS A AR B R ACE TS S5 L o o)
Gb o BRI BUEE > AL B R R 1R
WA SN EETT 1,200,000,000 %5 48 % o 8 A
% H1 8,000,000 #5 75 (43 £ 800,000,000 i 538 i )
4 % 20,000,000 # JG (43 £ 2,000,000,000 A 35 48
&) o BTk E A BB BT KA
TG > 4520 R A A B K G PRI 1h Bl oK Ak
' DUMEARVETE R AT -

B Fils OB EIE - BRERBENAA
Fl o [RIBRF > AP~ P R T o R AR R I
RS W AP AR DB o AR LR
P LB M Bt TORR A 09 ¥ AP SE RS AR > T
FAE TR R BE > DLBH 3% AR i 2 8 2 KA
BT o RRRERIREIR 2 TR LA N E
B OO B EH FURE - AL
PR TRAR > H ATERIE A 2 A SR A A T B 2 7
SEHIRE o A I B 90 e 28 2R IR R T 445 310 B
PPN - T il

ANENEREEG (EEE ) > EAEme
8 TR AR 55 ) AR - BN EAE B
RE 2 /A% 5 A B AR BB > A SR I )
0 VA TIT 325 1K 9 i 2 BR SIS A 45 T A 4
RAT > AN GRAR A 52 A A 4 A AR AR i 5 A
o MARREWRTTIG 2 ARACHTFICHSERE -

On the corporate finance side, the Group had successfully raised capital by
the completing of two placements of shares and an open offer of new shares
during the past financial year. In fact, the enormous over-subscription in excess
applications for the excess open offer shares is testament to the confidence
of the equity holders in the business future of the Group. Furthermore, with
the approval of the shareholders, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$8 million divided into 800 million ordinary shares
to HK$20 million divided into 2,000 million ordinary shares by the creation
of additional 1,200 million ordinary shares in the past financial year. The
purpose for the increase in authorised share capital is to provide the Company
with greater flexibility and assistance in its future expansion by means of
issuing new shares and fund-raising activities to capture potential investment

opportunities.

At present, the Hong Kong economy is experiencing a considerable boom
and investment climate remains positive. At the same time, the vibrancy
of the economies in China, Macau and certain Middle East countries can
provide abundant golden business opportunities to the Group. Moreover, the
Group is committed to utilizing and expanding its excellent overseas business
connections, especially in the African continent, to develop and tap into the
burgeoning natural resources market which is fast catching the attention of the
global investors whilst the world’s demand for natural resources is growing
at an astronomical pace. The management of the Group is confident that the
present climate will offer lucrative business prospects for us to diversify into
the natural resources market and explore new business opportunities in the

African continent.

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I would like to thank all our
staff for their continuous hard work and dedication. With the constant vigilance
of our management in maintaining the optimal efficiency of the Group and
with our good track record of identifying rich untapped market opportunities
and global network of business connections, I am confident that the Group will
continue to achieve sustained growth with particular bright future in the natural

resources markets in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

.,

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 April 2008, the turnover of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$184 million, representing a decrease of about 16% as
compared with a turnover of approximately HK$220 million of the preceding
year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 30 April 2008
amounted to HK$5.7 million approximately, representing a decrease of about
14% as compared to about HK$6.6 million of last year.

During the past year, the Hong Kong economy remained robust throughout the
period. The investment climate continued to be buoyant and positive for most
part of the year, as demonstrated by the bullish property market and the retail
sector. The full impact of the benefit to the local economy resulting from the
implementation of the QDII represented additional liquidity to the Hong Kong
equity market.

Moreover, the gradual transformation of Macau from a small Asian city into
an international hub with world-class entertainment facilities like casinos,
resorts and convention venues presented many market opportunities for the
diversification of the business of the Group to Macau. Concurrently, the
enormous increase in demand for natural resources like metals and petroleum
becomes a common phenomenon in the face of the falling value of the US
dollar and mounting inflation. The management of the Group is keen to utilise
its global business connections and expertise to explore and develop the market
of mining of natural resources through joint-ventures with its overseas partners
in developing countries.

The management of the Group is confident that the diversification of the Group
in geographical segments to Macau and the developing countries can achieve
optimal return on our investment thus enhancing shareholders’ value.
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With regard to the scaffolding division, the Group maintained its position as
the market leader of the scaffolding industry during the year ended 30 April
2008. In addition, the recent trend of an increase in large-scale renovation
works of shopping arcades by property holding companies in a bid to benefit
from the prevailing boom in retail markets presents ample opportunities for the
Group to further diversify to the provision of scaffolding for arcade renovation.
During the year ended 30 April 2008, the Group secured scaffolding works
contracts for the renovation of World Trade Centre, Uptown Plaza, Tsuen Wan
Plaza, and the renovation of UA Cinemas in Shatin and Tuen Mun. Besides,
works contracts for the provision of scaffolding services for the renovation
of several large residential buildings were secured such as Tierra Verde, the
Parkvale and 129 Repulse Bay Road. Furthermore, the provision of climbing
scaffold to Airport Express Kowloon Station (Phase 6) was completed and
received favourable feedback from the main contractor. At the same time, the
management of the Group devoted great efforts to streamline the operations and
minimise costs of the scaffolding division in a bid to enhance the efficiency of
the Group and to deliver total satisfaction to the clients.

At the same time, the Group continued its business strategy of constantly
introducing innovative products to the market. The second generation metal
H-Frame scaffolding was adopted by the main contractors at the Manhattan
Hills site and the renovation of the exterior part of World Trade Centre. The
application of this metal H-Frame scaffolding is very successful as it facilitates
savings in labour cost, enhances safety and improves the outlook of buildings
under construction or renovation. The management of the Group is very
positive of the future contribution to the Group from the anticipated wider
adoption of this ingenious product.

During the past year, the Group consolidated its position as a prominent service
provider in the market of Glass Reinforced Cement/Glass Reinforced Plastic
(GRC/GRP) themed cladding services, design and supply of themed artefacts
and signages. The Group was awarded works contracts for the provision of
GRC/GRP themed cladding services to Noah’s Ark in Ma Wan, the provision
of GRC animal sculptures and GRC covered walkway in Ma Wan Park, the
supply and installation of GRC external fagade to the Venetian Macau. The
management of the Group is extremely upbeat about the future of the market
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for the supply of GRC/GRP products, themed artefacts and signages as an

alternative source of revenue contributor to the Group.

In respect of the access equipment division, the contract for the design, supply,
installation and maintenance of access equipment for the Stonecutters Bridge
proceeded according to plan. In addition, two new contracts of significant
value were awarded for the provision of access equipment to the Venetian in
Macau and a works contract for the design, supply and installation of access
equipment for a landmark commercial building complex in the Chaoyang
district of Beijing, China was secured. This signifies an important step in the
Group’s expansion of business operations to China. The Group’s successful
development and penetration of the construction market in China by the
provision of an assortment of products and services will definitely promote
the Group’s image as a provider of sophisticated access equipment products
to reap the benefits and utilise the business opportunities provided by the vast
development in infrastructure, real estate development and booming tourist
industry in Beijing in 2008 due to the hosting of the Olympics in August 2008.
Regarding the parapet railing business, the on-going projects at Route 8 Ngong
Shuen Chau Viaduct, Deep Bay Link South also progressed according to
schedule. At the same time, the Group’s fleet of temporary gondolas enjoyed a
satisfactory rate of utilisation during most part of last year.

With regard to the fitting out division, the Group was awarded a total of 7
new works contracts during the year ended 30 April 2008. Among the new
contracts, the significant ones include the provision of fitting out services to
the shopping arcade in East Point City and the refurbishment of the clubhouse
and main lobby of the residential tower at 17 MacDonnell Road. The successful
diversification of the Group into the fitting out market and the goodwill it
acquired from project references contributed to the Group in becoming one of
the prominent players in the fitting out industry.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, the international division achieved
marked results in developing and penetrating the scaffolding and GRC/theme
park businesses in Macau and India. As the tourist and gaming industries
continued to flourish in Macau, the resulting vast increase in large-scale
construction activities present ample business opportunities to the Group.
Significant new contracts awarded in Macau included the supply of scaffolding
services to the Venetian, the Sands Hotel and the Arch Tower Project in Macau.
The business strategy of the Group is to target and focus on the supply of a
full range of construction-related products and services to further penetrate the
Macau market thus contributing to the overall profitability of the Group.
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Furthermore, considerable efforts were made to develop the natural resources
business of the African continent in conjunction with our overseas partner in
Malaysia. During the period under review, WLS (Oversea Projects) Limited,
a joint-venture company owned equally between the Group and its Malaysian
business partner, MKP Capital Berhad, was formed to explore the business
opportunities of granite mines in Angola.

With regard to the research and development division, following the success
in obtaining the grant of the patent covering China in respect of our Metal-
Bamboo Matrix Scaffolding, the Group continued to develop and market our
patented metal one-lock device coupler. During the period under review, the
patented Metal Bamboo Matrix System Scaffolding achieved wide usage,
both in Hong Kong and Macau. All in all, research and development efforts
and resources would continue to be deployed with the objective of constantly
introducing innovative and ingenious products to the market to maintain the
Group’s position as a market leader of the industry.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

At present, the Hong Kong economy is experiencing a considerable boom.
Strong consumer spending, on the back of positive investor sentiment, coupled
with a buoyant tourism sector supported by the Mainland Individual Visit
Scheme and the Closer Economic Partnership Arrangements (the “CEPA”) and
QDII all contribute to bolster consumer confidence and retail boom.

In line with the current bullish market sentiment, the Group has received
considerable increase in the number of invitations to tender for works contracts

in all its various lines of business.

Furthermore, the construction of numerous large-scale hotel and resort
developments in Macau with casinos and an array of entertainment and
convention facilities is under way. This will certainly present much business
opportunities to the various lines of business of the Group. Concurrently,
considerable efforts and resources were deployed for the development of
natural resources business in the African continent. Among these business
lines, the exploration of granite in Angola will spearhead the operations in
this direction and several large-scale exhibitions had been planned and venues

reserved for promoting Angolan granite as building material.

In conclusion, the Group’s business strategy will continue to concentrate on
developing the emerging markets with relentless construction activities such
as Macau, India and the Middle East. At the same time, the management of the
Group will remain constantly vigilant of reducing the costs whilst maintaining
optimal efficiency of the Group in a bid to increase profitability and enhance
shareholders’ value.

| oy sbupion s (= v s [

==
e

800z Hodey [enuuy M=\ (



S B ik i B 23 B
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JHH—BE (R FF/NENA=1H) Project Portfolio (As at 30 April 2008)

BTN AT
B O 20 A B /SRR

il Hong Kong

o bKERfAEERIEA Residential Development at Kwu Tung, Sheung Shui
o HEWREEEREA Residential Development at Lung Tin Village

o JUEEMEE TR RIEA Residential Development at Sa Po Road, Kowloon City
. TSR Island Lodge

. A The Vineyard

o BRI 10258 102 Hau Ming Street, Kwun Tong

o BRI IIUEHERE Commercial Building at 33 Cameron Road

o FEEMAHIET.W.T.L. 367 T.W.T.L. 367 Yau Kom Tau, Tsuen Wan

o EREULETEIRIEE Tao Fung Shan Residential Development

o EEATEIRIER Severn Road Residential Development

o HRES L World Trade Centre

o SRR Metroplaza in Kwai Fong

. EEEY Tsuen Wan Plaza

o RITERY Uptown Plaza in Tai Po

o KR MR Atrium Hotel at Pacific Place

. TSR R T Noah’s Ark in Ma Wan

SR 873 East Point City

Stonecutters Bridge
Route 8 Ngong Shuen Chau Viaduct

8002 Hoded [enuLy s \/ &&= | peyur sbupoH st 2w s E [

o JEIEER A B Deep Bay Link South

o] Macau

o MR EHURE T AR S Venetian Macau in Cotai

o HUBEM The Arch Tower

EaY China

o bR R R A R I H ¢ Commercial Building Complex Site in Chaoyang District of Beijing




PG i B 23 e

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S % 1o R B o

T TR HA ] > AR ) B A5 7 2EHE 4 184,000,000
R W AR D 16% o AN > AR AR [ B E
A AA TR KT 5 2 oot o &
e KR 2 A T A R o R
T AR P 2 A S0 5 35 7R A 3 ) 2 B
VPRS2 2 EBEIR o ULAh » B A i
IDEEISENE ¢ < N =N %

AN T B A AR B 2% o 0B R S A
17% 38 2 19% o A 78 HUR GRS I (45 A
P R B RE 2 TP ) B P A B 30 A 2 R
A TR o 07 0 B 5 Al D 0 I 3t A 2
WL BRI TG -

LA F 2 40 e 2 e 8848 > AT IR X
BE RSN 1% o AT BB S8 > )y FEE
AHEZHEREIMAR > 5525 AMER
B W SES IR IR A o MAh > AN HE IR
T 0 SET AR A S 88 e Ty TR I BH 32 -

FS A O R HHT SRS 2 RV T B 3 AT B
Ao LB MEEE SR - HBEKR
DI 003 2 2 Bl 8 B 0 4 P AR 15 LA 3

o

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the period under review, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$184 million, representing a decrease of 16% compared
with that of the preceding year. Nevertheless, the management of the Group
continued to diversify by businesses line and geographic market of the
Company. The lack of large-scale commercial and residential projects in Hong
Kong led to a reduction of turnover in Hong Kong. However, the scaffolding
division and management contracting division in Macau benefited from the
prevailing boom in the Macau construction sector. Moreover, the profit margin
recorded an increase thus partially offsetting the negative effect of a decrease in

turnover.

Gross profit of the Company decreased by 2% compared with last year whilst
gross profit margin increased from 17% to 19% during the period. The profit
margins generated from the projects of the management contracting division
including those in Macau and India and also the Macau scaffolding division
are satisfactory, thus compensating the reduction of gross profit from the Hong
Kong scaffolding division resulting from severe competition.

To cope with our business expansion and diversification, administrative
expenses had increased by 11% compared with the preceding year. Increase
of administrative expense was mainly attributable to the employment of more
experienced management staff whose effort not only serves current business but
also for future development. In addition, the Company has increased spending

on looking for new business opportunities and corporate development.

Since the financing of our current businesses is mainly by bank borrowings,
the diversified businesses increased the need for working capital but the two
successful placements of shares and open offers for new shares contributed to
the decrease in finance costs.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations by
internally generated cash flow, banking facilities and finance leases
provided by banks and finance companies. As at 30 April 2008, the Group’s
consolidated shareholders’ funds, current assets, net current assets and total
assets were HK$106,663,000 (2007: HK$53,701,000), HK$165,682,000
(2007: HK$125,925,000), HK$63,609,000 (2007: HK$13,906,000) and
HK$221,812,000 (2007: HK$179,996,000) respectively.

As at 30 April 2008, the Group’s consolidated bank overdrafts and bank loans
were HK$27,361,000 (2007: HK$27,543,000) and HK$42,110,000 (2007:
HK$51,624,000) respectively. As at 30 April 2008, the Group’s bank loans had
an amount of HK$31,376,000 maturing in 2009 and HK$10,734,000 maturing
in and after 2009. As at 30 April 2008, obligations under finance leases
amounted to HK$1,515,000 (2007: HK$261,000), of which HK$452,000 is due
for repayment in 2009 and HK$1,063,000 is due for repayment after 2009.

As at 30 April 2008, the Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to
HK$13,025,000 (2007: HK$11,548,000). As at 30 April 2008, the Group’s
gearing ratio (total bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
divided by shareholders’ fund) was about 67% (2007: 149%).

Most of the Group’s bank and cash balances, short-term and long-term bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Most of the bank borrowings bear interest at market rates and
are repayable by instalments over a period of 3 months to 2 years. Obligations
under finance leases have an average lease term of 4 years. All such leases have

interest rates fixed at the contract date and fixed repayment bases.

The Directors believe that the Group is in a healthy financial position and has
sufficient resources to discharge its debts and to satisfy its commitments and
working capital requirements.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 30 April 2008 (year ended 30 April 2007: HK0.50 cent per share).

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business segments

The Group is currently organised into 3 operating divisions — (i) scaffolding and
fitting out service for construction and building works, and (ii) management
contracting service for construction and building works and (iii) gondolas,
parapet railings and access equipment installation and maintenance services.
Details of result by business segments are shown in note 5SA to the consolidated

financial statements.

Geographical segments

The customers of the three divisions of the Group are situated in Hong Kong,
Macau and other jurisdictions. Note 5B to the consolidated financial statements
provides an analysis of turnover, carrying amounts of segment assets and
capital expenditure by geographical markets.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors do not have any future plans for material investments or capital
assets.

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group has pledged the following assets as against
general banking facilities granted to the Group:

ZREN\LG e

2008 2007

Ti#x TH#T

HK$°000 HKS$’000

fid-L/ES Investment properties 18,400 14,600
TA AT &R IH Prepaid lease payments 4,795 4919
S Buildings 12,300 12,000
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Directors consider that the potential foreign exchange exposure of
the Group is limited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2008, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$7,313,000 (2007: HK$8,619,000) to banks for surety bonds issued by the
banks in respect of construction contracts.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2008, the total number of full-time employees of the Group
was 116 (2007: 128). The total remuneration paid to employees (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$51,468,000 in 2008 (2007:
HK$47,350,000). Employees are remunerated according to their performance
and working experience. In addition to basic salaries and participation in the
mandatory provident fund scheme, staff benefits include performance bonus,
medical scheme, share options and training.

REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2008.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 30 April 2008, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Code on Corporate Governance Practice set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules (“Code on Corporate Governance Practices”) which is
effective for the accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005 has
replaced the minimum standard of good practices for issuers and their directors
stated in Rules 5.35 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board, the Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 9 November 2001 with
written terms of reference that clearly establish the audit committee’s authority
and duties. The audit committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive directors of the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, Mr. Yeung Po Chin
and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

Five audit committee meetings were held between 1 May 2007 and 22 July
2008.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. So Yu Shing (#&¥& &) , aged 56, is the chairman of the Group. Mr. So
Yu Shing has served in the Labour Department of the Hong Kong Government
before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, on 17 September 1991. He holds a bachelor
of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and a master of science degree
in engineering business management from Warwick University of the United

Kingdom.

Mr. So has also acquired the Registered Safety Officer qualification. He is a
prospective candidate of a doctorate degree in building and construction at the

City University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca (2 5i5%) , aged 53, is an executive director of
the Company and the spouse of Mr. So Yu Shing. Ms. Lai has been actively
involved in the management of the Group. She was engaged in the teaching
profession for over 17 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works

Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1988.




o B BT P i
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFERELE S+
o A E AT E
o BERA R E
LSRR L
B B2 1 A 00 f £
THEERGREN > T
TR AT E W R G B A
R S B R R AP E AT B BB o SR
LA — U A B A 2 4 A R A
AT S SR ] 2 W) o 2 A1 W 52 T BBORS S
PN D NE R WA O eI RS 1 S A
Vi R E O T AT SO AR R
W ST AR B AT AR B e AR B
TR 2 BT M T A AR > RS A AT T
A = TR R A - R &
TIAELH Z HERE AR FRATESR -

L8R A > It —
W A FAT B
LATE S - R R
T A m — + 4
LR A o >
Ferp B % [H] SR AT 9B
v SR BRI A > ST AR 2EARAT R BB ARATE
W o TLARAE Y B E AR = H AR AR
SRR TAERNHABERAE AN AATE R
T8 — R RAT R AR R o RS - — L
A TSR RS — RO RAT B IR I ARER - 1
BB BRI R e o A % BE ) » V052
BIRBER TR e o - B 2 {1 v [ RO %
5 B HL A A1 Y B 5 AR 2 ST B BRAR o VLSRR
IR R SE A P SO MR A B
SOBEL B o VTS ARG A s P SOR BT
BN B T B 2R A

Mr. Ip Ping Hong, Antony (% °F ), aged 60, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Ip holds a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Building Economics and
Measurement and was elected Fellow membership of the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors, Fellow Membership of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, Hong Kong Registered Professional Surveyors, and the Associate
membership of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Ip started his career
in the United Kingdom in the specialized field of quantity surveying in 1970,
having worked for quantity surveying consultancies and served in the UK
Birmingham City Council and the UK Department of Environment — Property
Services Agency prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Ip has since held
senior positions in one of Hong Kong’s largest property developers for 17 years
and subsequently served the construction industry for 4 years as the Assistant
Director for the Construction Industry Training Authority for vocational and
safety training. Mr. Ip overall has managerial experience of over 30 years in the
building and construction industry and was appointed as an executive Director

of the Company on 2 July 2004.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang (L#%) , aged 51, is the chief executive officer and
an executive director of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in
the banking industry and has held senior management positions specialising
in corporate banking as well as retail banking in a number of banks in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Before joining the Company in March 2002 and being
appointed as an executive director of the Company in June 2002, Mr. Kong was
engaged as Vice President and Zone Manager of First Pacific Bank Limited. In
1994, Mr. Kong was assigned by First Pacific Bank Limited as representative
to set up a Shenzhen representative office in the PRC. During that period, Mr.
Kong established close relationship with various Chinese Government bureaus
and other foreign financial institutions whilst stationing in the Shenzhen
representative office. Mr. Kong graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1981 with an honours bachelor degree in Business Management. Mr.
Kong also obtained an executive master of business administration degree
(“EMBA”) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Woo Siu Lun (WJKB¥) , aged 53, is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Woo has over 28 years of experience in various industries holding senior
executive positions. He was a director and senior partner of Euroair Equipment
Supplies Limited, a local engineering firm specialising in air-conditioning
equipment supply and he held an executive position in Liu Chong Hing Bank
Limited for 12 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1999. Mr. Woo holds
a bachelor of social sciences degree from the University of Hong Kong. He is
also an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators

and has been a qualified corporate secretary in Hong Kong for over 20 years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwok Wing (#kEd%8) | aged 54, is a practising accountant and
he was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 11 August 2004. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor of social sciences degree and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He is the sole proprietor of K. W. Lam & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and has over 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting and

taxation.

Mr. Yeung Po Chin (#525i) , aged 57, holds a bachelor of arts degree from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and
has been admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales and as a barrister and
solicitor in Australia (ACT). Mr. Yeung has extensive experience in the legal
profession, and has been a legal adviser to a number of associations and an
executive-committee member of various social clubs. Mr. Yeung is at present
a solicitor at T. L. Ip & Co. Mr. Yeung was appointed as an independent non-

executive director on 12 November 2002.

Dr. Fung Ka Shuen (%% ), aged 47, is a full-time lecturer in the Department
of Engineering of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi),
Vocational Training Council since 1995. Dr. Fung received his bachelor of
science degree from the National Tsing Hua University, Taiwan in mechanical
engineering. He also received a D.E.A. From National Ecole Superieure de
Mecanique et d’Aerotechnique, University de Poitiers, France and a PhD
degree from the Imperial College, University of London in fluid mechanics
respectively. Dr. Fung is currently the Course Leader of Higher Diploma in
Environmental Engineering and Energy Management and the Group Leader
of Environmental Technology Solution Group. In the past three years,
Dr. Fung published over 20 papers in the field of air pollution, healthcare
facilities, noise and environmental protection. Dr Fung is a member of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Institution of Mechanical Engineers,
the Royal Aeronautical Society and the Institution of Registered Professional
Engineers. Besides, Dr. Fung is the Assistant Honorary Secretary of the
Hong Kong Institute of Marine Technology and a committee member of the
Royal Aeronautical Society (Hong Kong Branch). He was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company on 28 September 2007.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Hui Tung Wah ( #F # 3£ ) | aged 54, holds a bachelor degree in social
sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a master’s degree in business
administration from Brunel University in the United Kingdom. He was
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 11 August 2004.
Mr. Hui was an executive director of Omnicorp Limited from July 2001 to
May 2003 and rejoined it as deputy chief executive officer from 1 May 2005,
having served for 2 years as senior vice president of Sino-Forest Corporation,
a Toronto-listed company. Mr. Hui is currently an executive director of
Omnicorp Limited. He comes from a strong financial and general management
background having spent about 30 years working in senior management
positions of major international and local banks, and companies in Hong
Kong, Australia and Canada. He is a seasoned executive and has extensive
management experience. He is also a non-executive director of Café de Coral

Holdings Limited.

(o) T - AR e - Ikt - I > BRI - BRYGHE > R4 - BEARER » sRARHE - B2 - {8
(From Left) Fu Chi Cheung, Lui Chun Man, Lin Keung Wah, Yau Siu Kwong, Lee Sze Chung, So Wang Bon, So Yu Fai, Li Chi Chuen,
Kwong Chi Kin, Cheung Wai Kuen, Luk Man Nar, Ho Ting Suen
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Chi Chuen, Arthur, (2= 4 ), aged 56, joined the Group in April
2008 and is a director of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. He
obtained a bachelor degree in Civil Engineering and a master degree in
Engineering Business Management from the U.K. universities prior to
obtaining various diplomas in construction in Hong Kong. He is a chartered
builder and a chartered engineer and is a member of the Australian Institute
of Building, a member of the Chartered Institute of Building, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers and a fellow member of the

Society of Operation Engineers in U.K.

Mr. Li is a seasoned administrator in construction project management and
his career in the construction industry spanned for over 30 years during
which he was responsible for the completion of many renowned large-scale
construction and infrastructure projects in Hong Kong, Macau and China when
he was in the employment of a number of well-known consultants and main

contractors.

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward, (¥ #8), aged 27, joined the Group in 2000 as a
director of Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which carries out all the scaffolding work contracts
of the Company. He graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree. He also holds a master of science
degree in Engineering Business Management from the University of Warwick

in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Fu Chi Cheung(f#a5#), aged 57, the general manager of the scaffolding
division of the Company. He joined Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in April 1988 and
has been in charge of the contract and quantity surveying department of the
Company for over 20 years. He graduated from a university in Shanghai. Mr.
Fu also has experience in the planning, design and management of a number of

engineering projects in the PRC.

| oy sbupion s (= v s i S

==
e

800z Hodey [enuuy M=\ (



= | panwr sBUIPIOH ST (2739 B 3 m

=
=

800g Hodey [enuuy M4\ (&

o B BT P i
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

ZRWEE - =TI AN A Z A
Bt Bt o 254t B T-EAE AT
/\Zli%@ o AR AT TR IR P L - BRATE ff K

T E T B R A v P LR B 2 A AT
&ﬁﬂﬁ%m)‘(ﬁ o A BT B E A G
SEG TR~ W A A A
RPN - MR ERITHRABAE - &
EBHREAFESHFERETEE - MAK
NI > AR SR A B Eh AN S A R 5 T
ST A O A A

BRUOME SR IR R FTNE AL
B SEATAR S ) 2 M 2 )R P BB PR
T2 o Bl S W A G e B R
U AR R AR R G G -
AT Y A S MEERETE 22
% B G IRES - B B Z i 2 d SR ToH
B2 R A IR, o e 4 F e
k400 T L BB 7 VRN TEL ) 2 R
B o BRELA RIZ 2 B TREAEER AN - 1R 45
AT RN B R U 2 BUBS AT 2 4F - RS /E H Al
AT P e W N G T E 2 T A

Mr. Lee Sze Chung (Z=818) | aged 39, is the financial controller and qualified
accountant of the Company. Mr. Lee joined the Group in August 2007. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the University of Wollongong
of New South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lee is
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also an ordinary member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lee has over 14

years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.

Mr. So Yu Fai, David (#§¥& ¥, aged 50, joined the Group in 2006 as a director
of Skylon International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and also a member of the Chartered
Institute of Building. He had served on a number of committees of these three
professional bodies over the last 20 years and has an in-depth knowledge
of professional matters related to a wide variety of construction standards
and ethics. Mr. So has an honours UK degree in building economics and
an Australian master degree in project management. In addition to his wide
experience in construction works, he also worked for the Australian Federal
Government as an administration officer for several years. Currently. Mr. So is

working on the Macau Venetian project as project director.
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Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen ( 5k % f# ) , aged 54, is the general manager of the
Gondola Division of the Company and responsible for the electrical and
mechanical (“E&M”) projects. He holds a master of science degree in
engineering business management from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He is a registered professional engineer and is a member of
The Institution of Mechanical Engineers and The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers. Before joining the group, he worked for The Jardine Engineering
Corporation for 15 years. He has extensive experience in E&M engineering
works and the local construction industry, specialising in project management,

engineering design work, technical support and construction supervision.

Mr. Lin Keung Wah (3###) | aged 50, is a general manager of a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Lin has 18 years of experience in the design, construction,
supervision and contract administration of various civil and structural
engineering projects ranging from foundations, buildings, bridges and
steelworks before joining the Group in September 2005. He holds a bachelor
of engineering degree in civil engineering and recently obtained a master of

science degree in geotechnical engineering from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho Ting Suen, Eric (i & 3 ) , aged 53, is the general manager of the
GRC Division of the Company. Mr. Ho has more than 25 years of professional
experience in the construction field and is knowledgeable with the property
development and construction management of projects in Hong Kong, Macau
and PRC. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and

Chartered Institute of Building.

Before joining the Group in October 2005, Mr. Ho had worked for several
renowned Hong Kong developers over a period of more than 19 years with a
proven track record of success. His extensive working experience in project
management, contract administration, tendering management and construction
management enables him to manage projects from inception to completion

efficiently and professionally.

Mr. Yau Siu Kwong (2 JE6), aged 36, is a senior manager of the Company.
He first joined the Group in July 1997 and is responsible for R&D, marketing
and business development. He holds a bachelor of science degree from the
University of Alberta, Canada and a master of science degree in environmental
management from the University of London, Imperial College of Science,
Technology and Medicine. He is a member of the Institute of Environmental

Management and Assessment.
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Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy ( B& 2 8 ) | is a human resources manager of the
Company. She worked with Gammon Construction Limited for 13 years
before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, in December 1995. Ms. Luk holds a master
of business administration degree from Liverpool John Moores University, a
diploma in administrative management from the Institute of Administrative
Management of the United Kingdom and a certificate in personnel management
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a member of the Hong

Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

Mr. Kwong Chi Kin (B 52) , aged 41, is a senior quantity surveyor of the
Company. He holds a master of science degree in construction management
from the University of Bath in the United Kingdom. Mr. Kwong joined the
Group in 2004 and has 19 years experience in contract administration of
large scale projects in Hong Kong and the PRC, including housing estate

development, highway, railway and power plant construction.

Mr. Lui Chun Man, Ronald ( & 8 3C) , aged 35, is a senior project manager of
the Fitting Out Services Division of the Company. Mr. Lui holds a master of
engineering management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney.
He has also obtained an Advanced Certificate of Management from the
Construction Industry Training Authority and has over 10 years’ extensive
experience in site project management. Mr. Lui joined the Group in August
2003 and his expertise is in the field of false ceiling, interior decoration and

fitting out services.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the Group’s goals. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management,
successful business growth and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to

the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders. By applying rigourous corporate governance practices, the Group
believes that its accountabililty and transparency will be improved thereby
instilling confidence to shareholders and the public. Throughout the financial
year ended 30 April 2008, the Group has complied with the code provisions
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has, since the amendments
to the GEM Listing Rules regarding corporate governance practices were first
proposed by the Stock Exchange, continued to monitor and review the Group’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and
other guidance notes were issued to directors and senior management of the

Group to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board, which currently comprises 9 directors, is collectively responsible
for supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Group.
Details of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and the other directors of the
Company are set out in the Directors’ Report. All directors give sufficient time

and attention to the affairs of the Group.

The presence of four non-executive directors, of whom three are independent, is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-
executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide
adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders
and of the Group. The non-executive directors provide to the Group with
a wide range of expertise and experience so that independent judgement
can effectively be exercised as well as ensuring that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest, serving on
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, scrutinizing the Group’s
performance and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the committees
on which they serve so that the management process can be critically reviewed

and controlled.

In full compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive directors and at least
one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Group has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of his independence
and the Group considers such directors to be independent in accordance with
each and every guideline set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. No

independent non-executive director has served the Group for more than 9 years.

All independent non-executive directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the directors. In addition, there is
no material relationship among members of the Board save that one executive

director is the spouse of the Chairman.
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Board Meetings

The full Board regularly meets in person at least four times every year. The
directors all participated in person. At least 14 days’ notice of all board
meetings were given to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the meeting and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations in connection with the meetings are observed
and complied with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers are

then sent to all directors at least three days prior to the meeting.

During the financial year ended 30 April 2008, nine board meetings were held

and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by each director:

HRE S, Ry
Number of &

Meetings attended/ Attendance
Ly Attendants Total percentage
PUTES Executive Directors
WRITL, So Yu Shing 9/9 100%
R lgiti Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 9/9 100%
R Ip Ping Hong, Antony 9/9 100%
TLER % Kong Kam Wang 9/9 100%
IR (G 22 L4 \H =1 HEHT) Kan Siu Lun (resigned on 30 Aug 2007) 3/3 100%
[EElY Woo Siu Lun 9/9 100%
FHPTEF Non-Executive Director
FrpE Hui Tung Wah 8/9 89%
BT E S Independent Non-Executive Directors
BRERIE O —ZFZFLFILH Z+/\H EHE) Sritawat Kitipornchai (resigned on 28 Sept 2007) 3/3 100%
W2 i Yeung Po Chin 9/9 100%
NS Lam Kwok Wing 9/9 100%

WA (R —F L EHE LA /N AHZAT)

Fung Ka Shuen (appointed on 28 Sept 2007) 6/6 100%
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During regular meetings of the Board, the directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial performances and discuss the
annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide
on other significant matters. The execution of daily operational matters is

delegated to management of the Group.

The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each board meeting in
detail by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and approval as
soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any

reasonable time on request by any director.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times as the
Chairman ensures that management will supply the Board and its committees
with all relevant information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to request for further
information. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for providing
directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that all proper
Board procedures are followed and that all applicable laws and regulations are
complied with. If considered necessary and appropriate by the directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at the Group’s

expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial shareholder
or a director, such matter will be discussed through an actual meeting and will
not be dealt with by written resolutions. Independent non-executive directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict

issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee and the remuneration
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in

board meetings for all committee meetings.
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The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman, Mr. So Yu Shing, is responsible for the Group’s overall strategy
and business development. The Chairman determines the broad strategic
direction of the Group in consultation with the full Board and is responsible for
the macro top-level decisions with regard to the overall business directions of

the Group.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The authority and responsibility for running the Company’s business and
implementing the Company’s strategies are carried out by the Chief Executive
Officer. The Chief Executive Officer, with the support of the Executive
Directors, is responsible for the strategic planning of the different business

functions and the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

Training and Support for Directors

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as directors and
of the business of the Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive and
formal induction to each newly appointed director upon his/her appointment.
Briefings and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that the new
directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties as
a director as well as the business and governance practices of the Group. Such
programmes are tailored to each individual director taking into account their
background and expertise. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
will continuously update all directors on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure

compliance of the same by all directors.

All directors also participate in continuous professional development
programmes provided or procured by the Group, such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a yearly
basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature of offices held by
such director in public companies and organizations and other significant

commitments.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Group has adopted procedures governing Directors’ securities transactions
in compliance with Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Confirmations
have been obtained from all Directors in compliance with the Rules. Relevant
employees, who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Group, are also subject to compliance with guidelines on
no less exacting terms than those set out in the Rules. No incident of non-
compliance was noted by the Company during the financial year ended 30 April

2008.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2006. The Chairman of the
committee is Mr. Yeung Po Chin, an independent non-executive director of the
Company. Other members of this committee include Mr. Lam Kwok Wing and

Dr. Fung Ka Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy, determining the
remuneration of executive directors and members of senior management of the
Group, as well as reviewing and making recommendations on the Company’s
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-
related issues. This committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice if deemed necessary.
The Remuneration Committee is also provided with other resources enabling it

to discharge its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on

the Group’s website. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The amount of fees charged by the Auditors generally depends on the scope
and volume of the auditors’ work. For the year ended 30 April 2008, the
remuneration payable to Moore Stephens was approximately HK$580,000 for

audit services.
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Terms of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years. All the above-
mentioned service contracts are continuous until terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment

of three months’ salary in lieu of such notice.

The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) have no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of
retirement and rotation of directors under the articles of association of the

Company.

All directors, including the executive and non-executive directors, would retire
from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at the annual general
meeting once every three years. In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of
the Company’s articles of association, Mr. So Yu Shing, Ms. Lai Yuen Mei,
Rebecca, Mr. Hui Tung Wah and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, would offer

themselves for re-election.

According to the Company’s articles of association, directors appointed to fill
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting
after their appointment and shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All

directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Audit Committee and Accountability

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Board is also
responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company, which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a going-concern basis,
and other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures. The
management of the Group provides all relevant information and record to the
Board enabling it to make the above assessment and to prepare the accounts and

other financial disclosures.

In full compliance with rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee, established in 2001, is currently chaired by Mr. Lam Kwok Wing,
an independent non-executive director, and the other members are Mr. Yeung
Po Chin and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen, both being independent non-executive

directors of the Company.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing
firm of the Company within one year on the date of his ceasing to be a partner

or had any financial interest in the auditing firm.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors during

the year under review.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Group’s financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditors’ report present a true
and balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position; reviewing the
Group’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems; and
reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices. Other
duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific terms of reference

which is posted on the Group’s website.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. The Company’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 April
2008 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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For the financial year ended 30 April 2008, the Audit Committee has held four

meetings. The individual attendance record of each member is as follows:

H S, Ja

Number of &R

meetings attended/ Attendance

LR Attendants Total percentage
BREGNE O —FF-LHEILA — 1+ /\H BHE) Sritawat Kitipornchai (resigned on 28 Sept 2007) 1/1 100%
Wb il Yeung Po Chin 4/4 100%
NS Lam Kwok Wing 4/4 100%
WHRE (R X EH I 1+ /\AZ{E)  Fung Ka Shuen (appointed on 28 Sept 2007) 3/3 100%
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The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings.
In line with practices consistent with Board meetings and other committee
meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and

record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

Internal Control

The Board with the Audit Committee are responsible for maintaining sound
and effective internal control systems for the Company to safeguard its
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness
of such systems. The Board will from time to time conduct a review of the
Group’s internal control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system, covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions during the year under

review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since the
last review; scope and quality of management’s monitoring of risks; incidence
of significant control failings and weaknesses identified; and effectiveness
relating to financial reporting and compliance with the applicable laws and

regulations including the Listing Rules.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall strategic
development of the Group’s business. All directors have formal letters of
appointment setting out key terms and conditions relative to their appointment.
Due to the diversity and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in
relation to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business plans are

delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, have specific terms of reference clearly defining the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committees. All committees are required
by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions,
findings or recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek the

Board’s approval before taking any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to different
committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and continue to be

beneficial to the Company as a whole.

Shareholders’ Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to
its shareholders. The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be reflected in many

aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the annual
general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. All the directors of the Company make a special effort to attend
the Company’s general meetings so that they may answer any questions from

the shareholders.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and personally held the
annual general meetings in 2007 and all previous meetings of the Company in
order to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the Board. A
separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate

issue at the annual general meeting.
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The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time to time
to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding corporate
governance. The annual general meeting circular, which is circulated to all
shareholders at least 21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting,
sets out the details in relation to each resolution proposed, voting procedures
(including procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. At the beginning of the meeting, the Chairman indicates (except
those where a poll is required) to the meeting the level of proxies lodged
on each resolution and the balance for and against such resolution. At the
Company’s 2007 Annual General Meeting, all the resolutions were dealt with
on a show of hands and Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were

properly counted.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other appropriate
members of senior management also respond promptly to inquiries from

shareholders and investors.

Investors’ Relations

To strengthen its relationship with investors, the Company regularly meets with
analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of the press and

other economic journals.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 30 April 2008.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are set out in notes 40, 17

and 18 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2008 are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 52.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 30 April 2008 (year ended 30 April 2007: HKO0.5 cent per share).

Investment Properties

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2008. The
increase in fair value of investment properties of HK$3,800,000 was credited to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 2008. Details of
the movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set out

in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

The buildings of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2008. The surplus
arising on revaluation of HK584,000 was credited to the consolidated income
statement to the extent of HK$244,000 and the balance of HK$340,000 was
credited to revaluation reserve for the year ended 30 April 2008. Details of the
movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 30 April

2008 were as follows:

SEEE R

2008 2007

T T#TT

HK$°000 HKS$°000

JBe A i AR Share premium 60,935 20,639
7 B i ) Retained profits 2,659 3,110
63,594 23,749

HRAEBR 2 B S A R (RIER]) 85328 > AL
2 P A A AT 3k 1 e SRS AT 3 IR S, - MR
AN F AL AR AR - S H B BE S AT
Tr IR EAR > A RIZEATRE I SR W RS
AR P 2 AR -

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 32 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
of Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

are:

Executive directors

Mr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Ip Ping Hong, Antony (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Kong Kam Wang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. Woo Siu Lun

Mr. Kan Siu Lun (resigned on 30 August 2007)

Non-executive director

Mr. Hui Tung Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai (resigned on 28 September 2007)

Mr. Yeung Po Chin
Mr. Lam Kwok Wing
Dr. Fung Ka Shuen (appointed on 28 September 2007)

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. So Yu Shing, Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, Mr. Hui Tung Wah
and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

All executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years. The service
contracts are continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than three months notice in writing, or by payment of three months salary

in lieu of such notice.

The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
have no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of retirement and
rotation of directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Share Options

At 30 April 2008, the interests of the directors and their associates of the
Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth
Enterprises Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

ety Z 5F K Long positions in shares
(VI 47 (1)  Shares
4 T B ARAT B
Number of ordinary shares held BITBRAZHG L
6]\ RE 2 FIRE B Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
HRA Name of director interest interest of the Company
RV e Mr. So Yu Shing 321,750,000 105,030,000 (Fff5ta) 58.0%
(note a)
Bkt Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 105,030,000 321,750,000 (Fff&Eb) 58.0%

(note b)
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i e 3 20 B B HARAR T
Number of ordinary shares held BATRAZ AL
6\ HE 25 EY3 Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
WA Name of director interest interest of the Company
LiPlY e Mr. Woo Siu Lun 18,400,000 - 2.5%
VLR S Mr. Kong Kam Wang 5,625,000 - 0.8%
i A 1 B R s e A 2 A o Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the spouse of Mr. So Yu Shing.
5T Notes:
(a)  #%321,750,000 % B > i #R 4 AR S A B (a)  The 321,750,000 shares are held by Mr. So Yu Shing.
H o
(b)  #%105,030,000 % % 173 By 2R I Ak 4 4= 4% (b)  The 105,030,000 shares are held by Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca.
H o
(2) VB (2) Share options
AN RN 2 TEIRRE ST 8 2 G O 4 Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company are set out in
AR M EE 29 - note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
R N AL E IR B E I DL - The following table discloses details of movements in respect of the
Company’s share options during the year:
REZRLE REZZ)\E
iA—H Engl FRERE MAZSTH
TR (B RR A BHER) frff AT Granted Exercised HARATHE
B BHAM Exercisable period Exercise Outstanding during the during the Outstanding
Name of director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2007 year year at 30.4.2008
o
HKS
RN CERCETACA-0 mEREEERASTAR 0381 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -
Mr. So Yu Shing 21 May 2002 EEEFNERLAZTEH
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
“EELETANA m-FFNENA T 0.60 - 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
§ October 2007 e Sy kU T

15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
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REBFLAE REZF)\E
TA—H ERE N MA=+H
TR (B MR RAEER) Trbif WAL Granted Exercised A Bl
33 AR Exercisable period Exercise Outstanding during the duringthe  Outstanding
Name of director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2007 year year at 30.4.2008
BT
HKS
it 1 CEECREASTH BCEREFAASTAA 0.381 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, 21 May 2002 BEENERHZTLH
Rebecca 28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
ZEELEHIAR e S YICAU)E i 0.094 - 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
8 October 2007 Eohe SIS N

15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014

[P it CEECREASTH SRR EFAASTAA 0.381 4,500,000 - (4,500,000) -
Mr. Woo SiuLun 21 May 2002 FERFNELN LA
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
e SR PV m-Z%\FNATHA 0.60 - 5,800,000 - 5,800,000
8 October 2007 E-F—-NFENATEH

15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014

THRELE e S St 53 By el B i = SSECS T B AN 0.381 4,500,000 - (4,500,000) -
Mr. Kong Kam Wang 21 May 2002 BRENERHZTLH
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
“FELEHIAR W= EEAENA I 0.60 - 4,300,000 - 4,300,000
8 October 2007 Eohe SIS N

15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014

E 0 it ZEELETATH m-ZE\ENA+EA 0.60 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Mr. Ip Ping Hong, 8 October 2007 FZF—-ENA A
Antony 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014

15,000,000 17,200,000 (15,000,000) 17,200,000

W b SCR 4 R 41 > ARy W) S BN A 2 T Save as disclosed above, none of directors or their associates of the Company,
N R AR =4 B R GA AR A 7] 5 had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of
FAT A AR g 32 1 2 R 9 ~ A R e 0 B i 25 v the Company or its associated corporations at 30 April 2008.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors Interests in Shares and Share
Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the

Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO disclosed no person as having a notifiable interest or

short position in the issued share capital of the Company at 30 April 2008.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.
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Appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive directors as independent.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 30 April 2008, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 64% of
the Group’s total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest

customer accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest

suppliers were less than 30% of the total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the

Group’s five largest customers.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 30 April 2008.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Competing Interests

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any

business which competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

Donations

During the year, the Company made charitable and other donations amounted
to HK$105,000.
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Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint Messrs. Moore Stephens as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

So Yu Shing

Chairman

31 July 2008
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MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 %
30 Canton Road WY,

Tsimshatsui ﬁﬁ

Kowloon
Hong Kong ==
="
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 e

Fax : (852) 2375 3828
E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk Bt
www.ms.com.hk i

To the Shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WLS Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 120, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 30 April 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 April 2008 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE—TZT)\FPH=+HIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

ZRENGE “ERTLE

2008 2007

B & T#x THIT

NOTES HK$°000 HKS$°000

e Turnover 4 184,315 220,006
SHE A Cost of sales (148,485) (183,308)
B Gross profit 35,830 36,698
HoAfe A Other income 6 675 851
TTECE: Administrative expenses (29,880) (26,945)
BB N TE SN Increase in fair value of investment properties 3,800 1,517
MR Surplus on revaluation of buildings 244 167
il A Finance costs 7 (4,576) (4,686)
JREA 7 A ) 2 SRR Share of results of associates - (66)
JRE A s [R] 42 ] i 3 2 S 5R Share of results of jointly controlled entities (171) 3)
W i e A Profit before taxation 5,922 7,533
HiIH Taxation 8 1,115) (1,171)
AR A RV ) Profit for the year 10 4,807 6,362

PR A A Attributable to:

EN/NGIL ETE R DN Equity holders of the Company 5,731 6,646
DR R RE A Minority interest 924) (284)
4,807 6,362

2RSS Dividend paid 11 1,354 508
Al AL

BB ] — HEA Earnings per share — Basic 12 HK1.01 cent HK1.44 cent




REHE AL
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-FZ/\EmA=+H At 30 April 2008

“ERR)N\E B
2008 2007
g SR THIT
NOTES HK$’000 HKS$°000
I B A Non-current assets
Eid<LyES Investment properties 13 18,400 14,600
W~ R I Property, plant and equipment 14 29,301 30,947
SiEKDEiENE e Prepaid lease payments 15 4,671 4,795
A Goodwill 16 3,138 3,138
TR N R 2 f g Interests in associates 17 - -
T [F] 422 il £ 2 2 i i Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 620 591
56,130 54,071
B & Current assets
TA (1 &R IE Prepaid lease payments 15 124 124
e Inventories 19 2,361 1,261
REN B Bills receivable - 534
MR Trade receivables 20 77,165 70,793
JENE P A &) TRERIE Amount due from customers for contract work 21 45,993 20,875
JRE WA [ 4 3K T Retention monies receivable 13,816 14,517
TSI ~ Hed K Prepayments, deposits and
A B Wi T other receivables 6,405 5,478
JRE VSR 85 A W) I Amounts due from an associate 2,261 -
JREMSCH [R] 428 ] £ SR Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 4,532 795
SRATHS B M Bl 4 Bank balances and cash 13,025 11,548
165,682 125,925
B ALK Current liabilities
JIRE A B R LA B £ 3 1 Trade and other payables 23 17,402 22,556
JEAT R P A 49 TR I Amount due to customers for contract work 21 19,363 15,666
JRE A P ] 48 T Retention monies payable 4,403 4,986
A Bi I Tax payable 1,716 1,456
Rl AL 44 7 3 Obligations under finance leases 24 452 194
AT Bank borrowings 25 31,376 39,618
AT L Bank overdrafts 27,361 27,543
102,073 112,019
i B & RS A Net current assets 63,609 13,906
HEE S Uk e B £ £ Total assets less current liabilities 119,739 67,977
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REHE AL
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-FZ/\EmA=+H At 30 April 2008

BB\ ZRBAA
2008 2007
(i T RV
NOTES HK$°000 HKS$’000
JEvi B £ £ Non-current liabilities
A 44 7 3 Obligations under finance leases 24 1,063 67
SRAT R Bank borrowings 25 10,734 12,006
TRAEFLIH Deferred tax 26 2,690 2,690
14,487 14,763
105,252 53,214
JBe AR B fiti o Capital and reserves
il &S Share capital 28 7,353 4,762
fetifh Reserves 99,310 48,939
EN/NEIL SRR DN Equity attributable to equity holders
JRRE Aok i of the Company 106,663 53,701
DB R £ Minority interest 30 (1,411) (487)
105,252 53,214

H52 % 120 H Z 5 A IRk i —FF /\FL A
T H A S A AR RETEE 5 LA R )

ANERB%E

BR R
SO YU SHING
F

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 120 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 July 2008 and are signed

on its behalf by:

W1 Jk gt
WOO SIU LUN
#HFE

Director



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE—TZT)\FPH=+HIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

AN ulbE g A A EAG

Attributable to equity holders of the Company ¥

BeA Wil GOFE B BB KRB i 5B
Share Share  Merger Revaluation Share option  Retained % Minority ik
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
T  Tx  TEx Tkr T TEx 0 Tx T TEx
HK$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000
WEFEFRE At 1 May 2006 4,575 17,463 2,222 - - 20,056 44316 (203) 44,113

LH—H

RAE B i Profit for the year - - - - - 6,646 6,646 (284) 6,362

e Dividend paid - = - = - (508) (508) = (508)

BB Tssue of scrip dividend 61 1,261 = = = (1,322) = = =

TT{ R Exercise of share options 126 1915 - = = = 2,041 = 2,041

ERRYAATS Revaluation surplus - = - 1,206 = = 1,206 = 1,206

e Suid At 1 May 2007 4,762 20,639 2,222 1,206 - 24872 53,701 (487) 53,214

LH—H

RAE B i Profit for the year - - - - - 5,731 5,731 (924) 4,807

e Dividend paid - = - = - (1354) (1354 = (1,354)

BRER Tssue of scrip dividend 33 1,445 = = = (1,478) = = =

TT{ R Exercise of share options 203 7420 - = = = 7623 = 7,623

Jhe f B 6 Placing of shares 900 16,376 - = = - 17,276 - 17,276

N E R Open offer of shares 1,455 15,055 - = = = 16,510 = 16,510

ERRAATS Revaluation surplus - = - 340 = = 340 = 340

1% A Grant of share options - = - = 6,836 = 6,836 = 6,836

REFENE

WA=+ At 30 April 2008 7353 6095 2am 1546 6836 277 106663 (1411) 105252

FRE - Notes:

(1) WHEFZRNAENA=1H > AL 2R A (1) At 30 April 2008, the retained profits of the Group included accumulated losses of
L5 MEAG AN 42 B 7 8 vl 2 B 548 143,000 # HK$143,000 (2007: accumulated losses of HK$143,000) attributable to associates of the
JC (ZEFLAE © BEMEE 143,000 4570) © Group.

2 WEZFEFE/NENA=1+H KAEMHZRE i (2) At 30 April 2008, the retained profits of the Group included retained profits of
Il 455 M A1 A A [0 A (] 428 o] 4 2 2 R B i A HK$317,000 (2007: retained profits of HK$488,000) attributable to jointly controlled
317,000 % 70 (—FFAAFE « {7 5 A 488,000 ¥ entities of the Group.

JC) °

(3) AEEZ G AT AN R 3T RAS HE (3)  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount
DI BOR AR R — B —F+—H =+ = of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value for the
H AT 2 4 19 31 40 BT i A BB 8 ) 8 38 AT i A issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
THI{H 2 755 - on 23 November 2001.

(4) AT 2 PR ot i A 2 ) A4 B A TN AE A% (4)  The share option reserve of the Group represents the fair value of share options granted

I 2 5 T 0 L o R 2 2
A -

to the directors and employees of the Company at the grant date during the year.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HBE—TZT)\FPYA=+HIFFZ Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

ZRENGE “ERTLE
2008 2007
R THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
L0 Operating activities
W i v A Profit before taxation 5,922 7,533
LR TE AR R Adjustments for:
FE A Interest income (1) (28)
R A B 7 A T SE 4R Share of results of associates - 66
JRE A s [] 42 ) £ 3 S 5 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 171 3
Pl AR Finance costs 4,576 4,686
figp IR TELAS AR B kT Release of prepaid lease payments 124 66
g Depreciation 4,124 3,399
HEWEE ~ R IR Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3) (60)
SRR Allowance for doubtful debts 1,036 612
BN T EE S Increase in fair value of investment properties (3,800) (1,517)
MG 2 AR Surplus on revaluation of buildings (244) (167)
TR 8 BERREZ A T(E Fair value of share option granted to employees 6,836 =
A S A i R Operating cash flows before movements
B 4 0 in working capital 18,721 14,593
A (38 b (Increase) decrease in inventories (1,100) 393
M > (34 m) Decrease (increase) in bills receivable 534 (534)
JE W B R Increase in trade receivables (7,408) (34,849)
JEW & F A #) LR A (Increase) decrease in amount due from
(8 h0) Wb customers for contract work (25,118) 11,130
JHRE S 3 ] <5 R T 2 (3 m) Decrease (increase) in retention monies receivable 701 (8,384)
TR ~ $e e R HADE Increase in prepayments, deposits and
VAR TE 3 T other receivables 927) (2,857)
JRE VS 25 A W) R (B ) b (Increase) decrease in amounts due from associates (2,261) 161
JHRE S S ] 428 ) A SR L Increase in amount due from a jointly controlled entity 3,737) (126)
JHRE A B R LA B £+ 3 T Decrease (increase) in trade and other payables (5,154) 7,117
(W 7b) 4 m
FERT & P & &) TR RIE Increase in amount due to customers
Ham for contract work 3,697 11,683
B AT 4 ] 45 R T > Decrease in retention monies payable (583) (133)
K L P Bl Net cash used in operations (22,635) (1,806)
BY NIy Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (797) (883)
EL A5 HoAth, R VA HE [ Bl T Tax paid in other jurisdiction (104) —
RIR USRS B Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 45 21
P 2848 S 2 Bl & A Net cash used in operating activities (23,491) (2,668)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE—TZT)\FPH=+HIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

ZRENGE “ERTLE
2008 2007
R AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
& Investing activities
BRI SS Interest received 21 28
L S=Ei'g<Ly/ES Purchase of investment property - (7,483)
BN FEATAR Bk Addition of prepaid lease payment - (3,117)
TEE W2 - MBSkt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (314) (12,182)
HEYZE - RS Mk T3k Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 857
BB ] P il A 2 2 A A Investment in a jointly controlled entity (200) -
P& S P Bl Net cash used in investing activities (490) (21,897)
Al SE Financing activities
2RSS Dividend paid (1,354) (508)
CATFLE Interest paid (4,548) (4,664)
LA Rl LA 2 Finance lease charges paid (28) (22)
B SR AT B New bank borrowings raised 76,520 119,908
TR EAT R Repayment of bank borrowings (86,034) (94,863)
SRATE I (D) S AR Net (decrease) increase in bank overdrafts (182) 9,390
B 7 AR 4 73S Repayment of obligations under finance leases (325) (215)
AT { B PR A Exercise of share options 7,623 2,041
J A5 T B 4 VS AR Net proceeds on placing of shares 17,276 =
N BREE R Ay 4R B AR Net proceeds on open offer of shares 16,510 -
AR il S 5 B A iR A Net cash from financing activities 25,458 31,067
B4 K B 4 55K IE H B4 Net increase in cash and
e cash equivalents 1,477 6,502
AR Z B4 B B 4 A T H Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 11,548 5,046
AR Z BB RBIEEMIER - Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
R SAT R R K B4 represented by bank balances and cash 13,025 11,548
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the

annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding and
management contracting and other services for the construction and building

works.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which are also the functional currency of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical

cost basis except for certain properties which are measured at fair values.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2008 are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2007, except for the adoption

of the new and revised HKFRSs as explained below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following new

HKFRSs, amendments and Interpretations:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKASI (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements:

Capital Disclosures

HK (IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK (IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK (IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HK (IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

The adoption of the above new HKFRSs, amendments and interpretations does
not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and has
no significant effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 April each year.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company

controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or

made up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other

members of the Group.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on

consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to

make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition for which the agreement date is before 1
January 2005, represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant

subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill, the Group has discontinued amortisation
from 1 May 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit to

which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the agreement date
is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such

goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented

separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
of a subsidiary is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement. An impairment loss for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

Investments in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses

are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities arrangements which involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity

of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes
in equity of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group,
unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full

amount of losses is recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Construction contracts/Management contracting services/Gondolas or

parapet railings installation services

When the outcome of a construction/services contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion that costs incurred
to date bear to estimated total costs for each contract. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have

been agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will

be recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of gondolas are recognised when the title is passed to customers.

Provision of services are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Investment property

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and included in the profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than buildings, are stated at cost less

subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the

balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of buildings is credited to
the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable

revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their

estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives
on the same basis as owned assets or the term of the relevant lease, whichever

is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in the year in which the item

is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments which represent upfront payments for leasehold
land are initially recognised at cost and charged to the income statement over

the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

N/
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at
their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a

reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. Loans
and receivables (including bills receivable, trade receivables, retention monies
receivable, other receivables, amounts due from associates, amount due from a
jointly controlled entity and bank deposits) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered

into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, retention monies
payable and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(i)  Share options granted to employees of the Company and vested prior to 1
May 2005

The Group did not recognise the financial effect of these share options
until they were exercised. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in the share premium
account. Options which lapsed or cancelled prior to their exercise date are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(ii) Share options granted to employees of the Company on or after 1 May
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to retained profits.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realiable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are charged to the income statement by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet, as measured by
the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for the

contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customers, are included in the balance sheet within trade and other

receivables.

Impairment — other than goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which

case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are

charged as an expense as they fall due.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of group entity are presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its
functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements,
the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in Hong Kong
dollars, the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency

for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance
sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are included in the income statement in the

period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the period

in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or

credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of giving a rise
to a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 April 2008, the
carrying amount of goodwill was HK$3,138,000. Details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Allowance of bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts when there is
objective evidence that receivables balances are impaired. The balances of
the receivables are based on the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective rate computed at initial recognition. The directors
involved a considerable amount of judgement in assessing the ultimate
realization of these receivables including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their

activity to make payments, additional allowance may be required.

Construction contracts

The Group’s profit or loss arising from construction contract is determined
by reference to the latest available budgets of individual construction contract
prepared by the Group based on management’s best estimates and judgments.
Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by

management.
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4. B TURNOVER
SRRAE CFTLE
2008 2007
R THIT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
L RS )% ik TARAR AL L Contract revenue in respect of construction and building
N RES 2 A Al AR works for the provision of
— 2R 5 E AR s — scaffolding services 88,591 85,313
—KEHEAE IR — fitting out services 30,719 40,190
EHA KRS Management contracting services 60,722 79,544
MM LAES - BhfEfH e e Gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
HEIB AR 2 T I M RS installation and maintenance services 4,283 14,959
184,315 220,006
5. AHEER SEGMENT INFORMATION
(A) ¥#oHm (A) Business segments
BT E M AS4E E B i =R 2R B A For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three
(i) 2 258 I i TR AR (LM 2845 2 Sk 1B iR operating divisions: (i) scaffolding and fitting out services for the construction
o (i) AR N TR RS LIRS and building works, (ii) management contracting services for the construction

K (iil) A TAES ~ Bt o ICHE G 2 it 2 %% and building works, and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment

5 T MRS - installation and maintenance services.



Bk 3 S5 WA B ik
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—TZT)\FPH=+HIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

5. HEB @)
A EHESHE

A BARZAE SE T  r BUE RIS T -

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(A) Business segments

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

TERE)\4E 2008
LE 3 INCOME STATEMENT
m TAES -
95 i A0 B2
PR MR € A s 4
A TR R T M2 ZHR
AR 3 TR AAEB e IR 7%
TR 05 IR o5 T KRS Gondolas,
Scaffolding and  Management parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building  and building  maintenance B
works works services  Consolidated
T# Tt Tt Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Wi REVENUE
FE SN Total external sales 119,310 60,722 4,283 184,315
ES RESULT
Pag B3 Segment result 3,368 8,944 (2,804) 9,508
Ho A A Other income 675
BEWEZ NTE Increase in fair value of
il investment properties 3,800
TR Surplus on revaluation of
buildings 244
Ko B SEBH 2 Unallocated corporate
expenses (3,558)
il A A Finance costs (4,576)
JRE A s [m] 422 ] £ 2 Share of results of jointly
ZHEE controlled entities 171y
R i Vi A Profit before taxation 5,922
BLIE Taxation 1,115)
A A Y Profit for the year 4,807

EREE Y S |

7.
NA:

[t

| penwry sBuiploH ST

EdE —

HH\(EE

800z Hodey [enuuy 4



=5
iz

x|
u

H

H\(£&= | peuwr] sBUPIOH STM (273 &

800 Hodey [enuuy 3

5. HEB @)

(A) EBZB @)

Bk 3 S5 WA B ik
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—TZ)\FPH=+HIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

HREAMGER BALANCE SHEET
m TAES -
95 4 A0 e
MR MR € A 4
i TR R T M2 EHR
RN 3 RAEB ez IR 7%
Bk e IR % & # Mg Gondolas,
Scaffolding and  Management parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building  and building  maintenance B
works works services  Consolidated
T# R R Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B ASSETS
I REE Segment assets 95,598 57,497 11,098 164,193
RS PERI 2 Interests in jointly
WS controlled entities 620
JREMSC [R] 428 ] £ 2 Amount due from a jointly
FIH controlled entity 4,532
JRE VAL 85 A W) I Amount due from associates 2,261
Kol EEE Unallocated corporate assets 50,206
ARG EERE Consolidated total assets 221,812
£ fi LIABILITIES
Wan 5=t Segment liabilities 34,932 3,267 1,379 39,578
Koy modsEE & Unallocated corporate liabilities 76,982
LR A B Consolidated total liabilities 116,560
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

H fh & B} OTHER INFORMATION
G R
iy S g3 Wi % % e
THRHER  ARERREE HBHMITE
LS5 T B A BB
BAERBMRE  EEAARE Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the  services for the equipment
construction construction  installation and
and building and building maintenance A5 bR
works works services Unallocated Consolidated
Tt Ti#n T Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
BB Capital expenditure 1,655 - - 363 2,018
il Depreciation 2,845 9 302 1,092 4,248
TR BB Release of prepaid lease
payments - - - 124 124
AR Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts 1,036 - - - 1,036
BEWE L N TERE Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - 3,800 3,800
[ S Surplus on revaluation of
buildings - - - 244 244
W~ BE A2 18 Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 3 - - - 3
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segment

S (Continued)

—REFLS 2007
Wi INCOME STATEMENT
M LIES
W75 Fk 1 12
R R TR B eHEE
e TR TR A b L
FRAEHN LR PR T MRS
Bk FABNR S B RIS Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the services equipment
construction for the installation and
and building construction and maintenance e
works  building works services Consolidated
T TH#TT THTT THsTC
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Wi REVENUE
RS Total external sales 125,503 79,544 14,959 220,006
ES RESULT
IR Segment result 7,688 8,563 (641) 15,610
Ho A A Other income 851
BEWEZ N EERSIN Increase in fair value of
investment property 1,517
MR Surplus on revaluation of
buildings 167
oy B SEBH 2 Unallocated corporate
expenses (5,857)
Al B A Finance costs (4,686)
JREA 7 A ) 2 AR Share of results of associates (66)
JEAG SR el 2 2 2645 Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 3)
IRt i Vi | Profit before taxation 7,533
BT Taxation (1,171)
AREE A Vi ) Profit for the year 6,362
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

HREAMER BALANCE SHEET
M LAES
[EE il
R FERER B eKE B
kTR ey M2 T
PR S5 g PR KR Bs
Bk FABNR TS B RIS Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the  services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building and building maintenance e
works works services Consolidated
THIT TH#IT THIT THIT
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000
B ASSETS
Iy REE Segment assets 90,230 26,312 18,749 135,291
S EEZTiE e v Interests in jointly
W45 controlled entities 591
JREMSC [R] 42 ] i 3 Amount due from a jointly
I controlled entity 795
KormidEEE Unallocated corporate assets 43,319
SR EE R Consolidated total assets 179,996
£ fi LIABILITIES
Wan 5=t Segment liabilities 32,058 8,129 2,467 42,654
Kormoads A & Unallocated corporate liabilities 84,128
i G A B Consolidated total liabilities 126,782
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

Hfth & B} OTHER INFORMATION
RLES
R R g DA e e
TRt Befkdd EBHcRE
A TRt AR
BREsBNRE ERAARYE Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services forthe ~ services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building and building maintenance KB A
works works services Unallocated Consolidated
T T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
BB Capital expenditure 4,596 21 70 7,781 12,468
g Depreciation 3,557 6 422 117 4,102
TR BB Release of prepaid lease
payments - = - 66 66
R Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts 195 417 - - 612
BB AT ER Increase in fair value of
investment property - - - 1,517 1,517
[ S Surplus on revaluation of
buildings - - - 167 167
I - B Rkt Gain on disposal of property,
pal e plant and equipment 60 - - - 60
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5. HER @)
(B) M3

AR 2 R RS A s~ TR T A ]k
ZEF o FREAEME B I - A

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) Geographical segments

The Group operates with customers situated in Hong Kong, Macau and other

jurisdiction. The following table provides an analysis of the revenue, carrying

JE AR THT {1 2 S A B S 70 A o amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure by geographical markets:
I 1 7 e o AN A 2 BB 3
BEB Carrying amount of Capital expenditure
Revenue segment assets incurred during the year
ZERFME O CFLLE ZRF\E CETLE ZFFNE CRRLF
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Tt TH#T TH#L T T#t T
HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
Tk Hong Kong 121,830 122,798 160,777 141,011 1,988 11,992
it Macau 60,029 78,441 59,115 35,331 30 476
HAtv kR Other jurisdiction 2,456 18,767 1,920 3,654 - =
184,315 220,006 221,812 179,996 2,018 12,468
6. A A OTHER INCOME
SEENE CRERLE
2008 2007
T#7u THETT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
HEYZE - WE Bkt Gain on disposal of property, plant and
Z s equipment 3 60
FIE A Interest income 21 28
AW - FBRZ 3 Rental income, net of outgoings of nil
(CFT LA ) (2007: Nil) 536 266
HRETE LA Sundry income 115 497

675
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7. BEE AR FINANCE COSTS
“ERR)N\E B
2008 2007
T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
SRATRERLE Interest on bank borrowings
— JEIN AR N A B R — wholly repayable within five years 4,009 4,511
— JHIR AR R R HE R — wholly repayable beyond five years 539 153
TRl EEAR 40 73S 2 ) S Interest on obligations under finance leases 28 22
4,576 4,686
8. MiH TAXATION
RN\ ERELE
2008 2007
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
T B S A The charge comprises:
BB Hong Kong Profits Tax
AT Current year 675 266
TEARBEAS L FE Underprovision in prior years - 38
675 304
HoAth R [ — A4 B Other jurisdiction — current year 440 711
IRAERLIE (P 3E 26) Deferred tax (Note 26)
AR Current year - 136
TEARBEAS I FE Underprovision in prior years - 20
- 156
1,115 1,171

B s AR BE O H AR N Al =T RERRBL It A1 2 17.5% B Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable profit

HFHE o for the year.

i EL At ) Y i T A 2 B IE T AR SRS B Rk Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate applicable in the

HE 2 8 B R G E o relevant jurisdiction.
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8. BiHm@ TAXATION (CONTINUED)

4 A 2 Tt TR B S B AR 5 Wi i 2R BT 2 R B i

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

Fil 2 SRR : per the consolidated income statement as follows:
BB\ R
2008 2007
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000
R i ¥ Profit before taxation
AW EBE17.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
FIAZBIIA of 17.5%
JEAL T A Rl 2 2 Tax effect of share of results
25 5 288 of associates
R A e ] 2 ] s S SR Tax effect of share of results of jointly
25 5 288 controlled entities
VNGIE v Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
B R 2 tax purpose
DHRRRBLZ WA Z BB 5 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
RTHERZ B EZ Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
25 5 28

) A 1 0 R e < BE VL 1R
TEARIEIE B 2 AN R A3
HEAEFBFER
LA R
P SH A ] 35 o A 2 R
ARGk TR 82
s

AR 2 BLIEBH SZ

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
Under provision of deferred tax in prior years
Under provision of Hong Kong Profits
Tax in prior years
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction
Others

Tax charge for the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—TZ)\FPH=+HAIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

9. EHKIEEME

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) HHEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
it IH%  FPR WhR  GhwE
BRk R Lai B Kong Ip Ping Kan Hui v 27} B
SoYu  Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Hong,  SiuLun, Tung Fung  Yeung Lam st
Shing  Rebecca  SiuLun Wang  Antony Philip Wah  KaShuen ~ PoChin Kwok Wing Total
T T#x  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx  TEn Tz TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HKS°000  HKS'000  HKS$000
“EBNE 2008
s Fee - - - - - - 100 58 100 100 358
A : Other emoluments:
FaRHumA Salarics and other benefits 2470 1,46 A 1,46 1336 m - - - AU
SRR B 5% Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 4 - - - - 04
Bk o 2 R Equity-settled share option
il expenses 592 592 1,226 909 i - - - - - 3,636
e Total emoluments 3,074 1,850 1,761 2,167 1,665 36 100 58 100 100 11,251
Atk Lz EPR kR A
BR Lai kB Kong  IpPing Kan Wi BEE BEE MER
SoYu  Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Hong,  SiuLun, Tung  Sritawat Yeung Lam a5t
Shing ~ Rebecca  SiuLun Wang Antony Philip Wah Kitipornchai ~~ Po Chin ~ Kwok Wing Total
Ter  T#r  Ter  TEx Tkt T T T T T TEx
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
3L 2007
e Fee - - - - - - 100 9 100 100 39
HA - Other emoluments:
e R A Salaries and other benefits 2310 1,030 490 990 1,150 353 = = = = 6323
IR Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 6 - - - - 66
kS Total emoluments 230 1,042 502 1,002 1,162 359 100 9 100 100 6,781




(b)
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wHRIEBME @)

AR FNAFFE » AR 144 S5 3B A
TEFENZ (CET L - HR) AN A E
St o LI G IR B G A A R R B
9(a) o B N AL Z BEERE ST

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

During the year ended 30 April 2008, the five highest paid individuals
included four Directors (2007: five), details of whose emoluments are set
out in note 9(a) to the financial statements above. The emoluments of the

remaining individend for the year are as follows:

SRRAE  ETLE

2008 2007

TH#IT T

HK$°000 HK$°000

S S HoAh A Salaries and other benefits 605 -
REY NI R Contribution to retirements

benefits schemes 12 -

WY ETEAL Discretionary Bonus 30 -

647 -

BT — 44 I 5B e R A L S s
LU

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual other than

directors are within the following bands:

2 A S— o

2008 2007

T Tt

HKS$’000 HK$’000

JE25 1,000,000 5 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 -
1 =

JAAEEHATAY - A5 [0 7 AT o] 55 = mAE Ao
T e BT ST 1 2 A
A [ N A Ry 2 S Y 5 2 R AR A

During the year, the Group did not pay to directors or any of the 5 highest
paid individuals any emoluments for inducement to join the Group or

upon joining the Group or compensation for loss of office.
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10. A4 JE i A PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
BB\ R
2008 2007
Tt THETT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
A E R EFUER (FEA) Profit for the year has been arrived at after
THISIE charging (crediting):
SRR A Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 1,036 612
A% BT <5 Auditors’ remuneration 572 530
Tl R f B S 2 A7 LA Cost of inventories recognised as expense 424 646
Eii Depreciation
HEEE Owned assets 3,924 3,942
DIRVERL ARl 2 Assets held under finance leases 324 160
4,248 4,102
W B A ARG S Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts (572) (703)
3,676 3,399
TA AT AH R E R Release of prepaid lease payments 124 66
HEWZE - BE K24 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment Q3) (60)
Tt BT ST A 2 Minimum lease payments for operating leases
IR 4 in respect of land and buildings 1,908 1,959
W B A ARG S Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts (1,637) (1,310)
271 649
BITARE (HiEHEFME) Staff costs including directors” emoluments
— BRI 2 —Equity-settled share option expenses
S RHE 2 T 6,836 -
— DA At 2o —Settled by other means 44,632 47,350
51,468 47,350
W B A ARG S Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts (33,283) (33,753)
18,185 13,597
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11. RS DIVIDEND PAID
it = I\ B
2008 2007
Tt Tt
HK$’000 HKS$°000
R IR S AT 0.5 W1l Final dividend paid in respect of 2007 of 2,832 1,830
(BTN 0.4l 2 R HKO.5 cent (2006: HK0.4 cent) per share
DY Zid5S Scrip dividend issued in lieu of cash (1,478) (1,322)
1,354 508
R AN IRAS AR A I B Final dividend in respect of 2008: Nil
(ZFZLA - 0.5 ) (2007: HKO.5 cent per share) - 2,832

TAAAE IR AT 2 B S P 4 1,478,000 70 (-2 &
LA 11,322,000 ¥ 70) JIREA A ml R E = F
LN A =1 B IR4EER AR SR 2%
THEILA L B AR Z AR 7 LA # LA
JBeArs S A

Uk T EN A =+ AR EE SRR AR
FRMIAE -

12. BREM

BIRERBRTIREARFEERA G TFA
N JRE A v A B B A 38 4 47 i R ST 2 s 8
570,038,677 B ( —FZF L 4F : 461,769,855 ) #
ﬁ o

MR AR F R AR R R L AR A
= H i ARAT S PR S 5 S R > I
I 2 5 B BV LA o

Of the dividend paid during the year, approximately HK$1,478,000 (2007:
HKS$1,322,000) were settled in shares under the Company’s scrip dividend
scheme announced by the company on 17 September 2007 in respect of the
final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2007.

No final dividend has been proposed by the directors for the year ended 30
April 2008.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company for the year and on the weighted average
number of 570,038,677 (2007: 461,769,855) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

No diluted earnings per share have been presented because the Company’s

outstanding share options as at 30 April 2008 and 2007 were anti-dilutive.
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13. &Y% INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
THIT
HKS$’000
2FAE Fair value
W FETNFEMA =1 H At 30 April 2006 5,600
N Addition 7,483
AR Z 3 Increase in fair value 1,517
REEFELFMA =1H At 30 April 2007 14,600
AR Z 38 Increase in fair value 3,800
W _FE)NEMH=1H At 30 April 2008 18,400

A B B 7 7 B 2 W) EE 5 U0 i R A A0
Ao WARIERERATE - AL 22 L
ANPEBEXFE B EAIRIMEREY
¥ o RoBENENH=FH > %S ERER
2 BT {6 7% 18,400,000 #5 o6 ( = F & L4140 A
=1H : 14,600,000 5) °

REHZ BEYHER —FTNFNH=+HZ
O SFAELT RR AR 98 S T A SRSl (L T A6 34
FE RPAS A R R ] FAEAT 2 fh (RS - w247
SELAC AR [ M SOE R 22 o A T S T AG A PR R
oy B 1B 2 5 A A o A R 2
B o S 0 R AR KA A T A ) 3t [ A
(EA &M K8 o A T ik 0 IR B PR A (ELA Ve > I
S MR AE T 855 38 ST 26 2 22 5 M T o E -

A4 ] e B SR M 2R S I (FTA )
FEWRIFAE AL A 22 536,000 50 (ZF%F
LA £ 226,000 #ET0) o AR A 2 4 R 4 2
PEA 2 EAEA R -

The Group’s property interests are situated in Hong Kong, held under a long
term lease and rented out under operating leases. The Group’s properties are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. At 30 April 2008, the carrying amount of such property
interests amounted to HK$18.4 million (30 April 2007: HK$14.6 million).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 30 April 2008 have
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is a
member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”), and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at

by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties,
all of which is leased out under operating leases, amounted to HK$536,000
(2007: HK$226,000). There are no direct operating expenses arising on the

investment properties in both years.
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14. W3 -~ B Mt

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SEE MRTER R &
s Y31 G B HE
Rkt Metal  Gondolas ¥ Furniture
VS Plant and tubes and  and related Motor and At
Buildings  machinery catwalk  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
Tt Tt THT Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000
WA A COST OR VALUATION
REZZEANFRA—H At 1 May 2006 3,050 1,043 28,113 4,101 6,287 5,763 48,357
NE Additions 7,601 12 3,852 = 381 532 12,468
& Disposals = = (1,320) - = - (1,320)
HG AR Surplus on revaluation 1,259 = = = = = 1,259
RZZLFNA=+H At 30 April 2007 12,000 1,055 30,645 4,101 6,668 6,295 60,764
NE Additions = = = = 1,655 363 2,018
HE& Disposals - - - - (127) - (127)
ERHEA S Surplus on revaluation 300 = - - - - 300
REFE/ENA=+H At 30 April 2008 12,300 1,055 30,645 4,101 8,196 6,658 62,955
o Comprising:
JAE At cost = 1,055 30,645 4,101 8,196 6,658 50,655
RZFENEAGE At 2008 valuation 12,300 = = = - = 12,300
12,300 1,055 30,645 4,101 8,196 6,658 62,955
b DEPRECIATION
REFERRFAA—H At 1 May 2006 - 967 13,279 2,201 5241 4,664 26,352
TR A Provided for the year 114 45 2,420 402 507 614 4,102
A Eliminated on disposals = = (523) = = = (523)
E G Eliminated on revaluation (114) = = = = = (114)
REFEFLFENA=FH At 30 April 2007 = 1,012 15,176 2,603 5,748 5,278 29,817
A N AR Provided for the year 284 27 2,518 353 591 475 4248
H B Eliminated on disposals = = = = (127) = (127)
E ] Eliminated on revaluation (284) - - - - - (284)
REFFNENA=+H At 30 April 2008 = 1,039 17,694 2,956 6212 5,753 33,654
R T £ CARRYING VALUES
REFZNFENEH=1H At 30 April 2008 12,300 16 12,951 1,145 1,984 905 29,301
AZFELENA =1 At 30 April 2007 12,000 43 15,469 1,498 920 1,017 30,947

AL T AORERE - P ETE5E -

The buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and are held under

medium-term leases.
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14. W3 -~ W5 Jdt i o

Wi ~ Wbs Bl 79 R B SRR T AU4F R4y
-

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

M Buildings FEAR AT AT 50 47 ( DARE 3 4 e )

Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 50 years
W Bt Plant and machinery 20%
B B BABAR Metal tubes and catwalk 10%
M LAE & I A B st Gondolas and related equipment 10%
RH Motor vehicles 20%
EUY &S Furniture and fixtures 20%

AL MT R FRNENA =+ HZAF
(BT AR 08 S T S S il 1 P A 347 5 7
A PR R R HOEAT 2 A EE B a2 AT BA
A T B 2 o A B0 T A AT PR A R A 3
I 2 R A e A R A 2 R R
P A 9B A B AT T A A I e [ ()
SE M KEBR o A 301 IR B BRAG (AR > I 2 IR
K rns MBI S 2 58 oy (AR T

AN S AT A > R S AN I R T
£ 14,386,000 15 7C ( ~FFE L 4F 1 14,781,000 #
J6) R AL SRR A o

RTEENAEN A =+ H > A4 H LB & H A
Pl 2R A 2 BRTENF(E A0 4 1,483,000 75 70
(ZEFLAE 1 598,000 #5T) ©

The fair value of the Group’s buildings at 30 April 2008 has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is a member of the
RICS and HKIS, and has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at by reference to

market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

If buildings had not been revalued, they would have been included in these
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation of
HK$14,386,000 (2007: HK$14,781,000).

At 30 April 2008, the net book values of motor vehicles of the Group include
HKS$1,483,000 (2007: HK$598,000) in respect of assets held under finance

leases.
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PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

ZREN\E TERELE
2008 2007
T#T THTT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
e S < s S e 2 AN B At 1 May 2007/2006 4,919 1,868
fH—H
IR Additions - 3,117
TS R R Released during the year (124) (66)
MEBTENE ZBTFLAF At 30 April 2008/2007 4,795 4,919
WH=+H
Ve R 5 Analysed for reporting purposes as:
i b <yz3 Current asset 124 124
FE L Non-current asset 4,671 4,795
4,795 4,919

AL 2 EATHERIAEE - PP AR E

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in Hong Kong

{7 A S AL L o held under medium-term lease.
16. F® GOODWILL
T
HKS$°000
BA COST
AZEERAFER—H At 1 May 2005 4,332
A RIS AR AN A s A i E ) Elimination of amortisation accumulated prior to the adoption
55 3 SERTMLEE 2 5k of HKFRS 3 in 2006 (1,194)
AR LFE R FE/NFENH =1H At 30 April 2007 and 2008 3,138
{51 AMORTISATION
M EREHA—H At 1 May 2005 1,194
A TSR AN A s A i E ) Elimination of amortisation accumulated prior to the adoption
55 3 SERTALEE 2 5k of HKFRS 3 in 2006 (1,194)
AR R —FF/FEMH =+H At 30 April 2007 and 2008 =
R ThI CARRYING VALUES
A ZEE/NFEMA =+H At 30 April 2008 3,138
RZFFLFENA =+H At 30 April 2007 3,138

HEZZHFEWNA=THAIE > BT E

BRAE T LA R AT (8 AR A8 o

method over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Until 30 April 2005, goodwill was being amortised using the straight-line

EREE Y < |
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16. W2 @)

K R ZETS B DR MR 2 T A A B R P 2 T
WA % 26T A Dh A 2 2 B A e A B - P
2 HRTHE 3,138,000 5 7T T3 2% i fid % B A )
(T BEA7 1) 2 s A LA B B i 8 A 6 e Af A 72
M 2 % 4e T HEAE IRGS

OB I S A U5 3 5 S 5
AT W R » 0 7 o B T A
R A T IR -

BETT)ENA =T HIEFEER - REE
L R 2 R LI B

7% LS 2 T i ] < AR B (B 2
HERETE o A B AT E SRR T AR T R
FHA o B A G B R TS 3R AR A 2 7
LR P A S ) B B R RO 2 B R T
T > 1A T TR T 2 5 4 0 ] B A SR A Iy S
e WARREEL A 8.5% wl H o sZBLA A A
B Y T T ARR TR A ] ) 2 TR B A
HetH o FHE R Z B RTIRERARE XA
L ST 35 8% e 2 UM R E o

17. JRBEE 2\l Z HEdR

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill of HK$3,138,000 was wholly
allocated to cash-generating unit in gondolas and parapet railings and assess

equipment installation and maintenance services of a subsidiary (the “Unit”).

Upon the application of HKFRS 3, the Group tests goodwill annually for
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, the management of the Group determined

that there is no impairment of the Unit which goodwill has been allocated.

The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined on the basis of
value in use calculations. Their recoverable amounts are based on certain key
assumptions. All value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on
latest financial budgets approved by the Company’s management covering a
period of 5 years with zero growth rate, and at a discount rate of 8.5%. Cash
flow projections during the budget period for the Unit are based on the expected
gross margins during the budget period. Budgeted gross margins have been
determined based on past performance and management’s expectations for the

market development.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ZEZ)NE —EFE A

2008 2007

T#x THIT

HK$°000 HKS$’000

I LB 7 2 G AR Cost of investment in unlisted associates 200 200

JRE A WSS A% s 1

Share of post-acquisition losses (200) (200)
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17. JRBEE 2 R Z BESS (a0

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

AZERENFEMA =10 > BEg AR ZwEIE Particulars of the associates at 30 April 2008 are as follows:
T
AL w Pird C#AT
E3 Ak iR, e A 2 T £ b
BREE R 248 H Jir s Proportion of
Form of Place of it 380031 nominal value of
Wi AW A1 business incorporation/ Class of issued share capital F T
Name of associate structure operation shares held held by the Company Principal activity
BM Technologies a7 WA i SR LT eyl 36.36% Eid<eedi
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Investment holding
Wui Chun Building Ay Eis 3 i 36.36% TR R RS
Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of repair and
maintenance services
7 B ) T A ) 2 S Y ) The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set
. out below:
T
ZREN\LG “ETLE
2008 2007
T#x TH#TT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
B EME Total assets 1,334 16
A fERAE Total liabilities (2,343) (90)
1), Net (liabilities)/assets (1,009) (74)
A AL M A T 2 Group’s share of net assets
B THE of associates - =
Wi i Revenue 1,314 =
ARAE R Loss for the year (946) (255)
AP JRE 7S AR [ R A i A ) Group’s share of results of associates
2R for the year - (66)
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18. A S [ 2 il 4 3 2 B

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ZEE)NE e 2 S etis

2008 2007
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000

SL[E P32 IF b Cost of unlisted investments in jointly
BOE A controlled entities 303 103
AR A LA B A% Ui Share of post-acquisition profits 317 488
620 591

BE LT )ENA =+ H > ILE 6 b Particulars of the major jointly controlled entities at 30 April 2008 are as

E LT elloes:
Ao vl C#E AT
JBe AR 2 T Eb A5
GRL Proportion of
FEHRBIEX K B ER nominal value of
Form of Place of Ji& oy JE 1 issued share capital
AR business incorporation/ Class of indirectly held by SEB R
Name of company structure operation share held the Company Nature of business
MKP-Wui Loong Al wA )5 U] e 49%  HEFEMAE RS
System Scaffolds Incorporated Malaysia Ordinary Promoting scaffolding
Sdn Bhd systems
Wui Foo Engineering Al wA s e 50%  fRALETHILE
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of climbing
scaffolding
WLS (Oversea Projects) sk ffit oz itk il 50%  BESE S ORSR IR BH IR
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Mining and exploration

of natural resources

W EFE/NFENH =1 H > MKP-Wui Loong At 30 April 2008, MKP-Wui Loong System Scaffolds Sdn Bhd and WLS (Oversea

System Scaffolds Sdn Bhd & WLS (Oversea Projects) Limited have not yet commenced business.

Projects) Limited i A Bl 46 SE55
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18. 3[R e dl 4 3 2 HE 2R () INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

R A B2 1B DARE £i 125 37 Hi 2 P ] 42 1 i SE 4 The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interests in

Z B E R BRS¢ jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using the equity method is set
out below:
ZERE)N\E R
2008 2007
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
T Current assets 6,029 1,548
FE I & Non current assets 880 1,271
e UE=Li Current liabilities (5,635) (1,613)
A Income 2,900 2,057
BH = Expenses (3,242) (2,064)
AR 8 Loss for the year (342) (7)
AN A B AR 2 [ A ] 42 7 Group’s share of results of jointly controlled
e 2 entities for the year a71) (3)

19. 78 INVENTORIES
SRR\ B
2008 2007
T#T THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
JERE— A Raw materials — at cost 2,214 1,138
B — AME Finished goods — at cost 147 123

2,361 1,261
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20. WKk

HE—TZ)\FPH=+HAIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

TRADE RECEIVABLES

AL
Group
SERAE CEELE
2008 2007
T#x SR
HK$°000 HK$’000
JEWSCR K Trade receivables 86,439 79,031
B RIERR Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 9,274) (8,238)
77,165 70,793

SRR F N Z B BT

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as

follows:—

A

Group
RN\ TR
2008 2007
T#T THIT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
—H—H 1 January 8,238 7,626
BATERSCAIN, 5] Impairment losses recognised 1,036 612
TZA=1—H 31 December 9,274 8,238

Ta) 4 44 IR 7l %5 5 Bk 22 A5 B T AR 48 A B 2 B The credit terms given to each individual customer were in accordance with the

LA K AT I FR AL o MRS AR SRR A 5 payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The aged analysis
Hram s - of trade receivables is as follows:

RN\ ZRBLAE
2008 2007
TFioc THsIC
HK$’000 HK$°000
0—90H 0—90 days 30,528 47,176
91—180 H 91 — 180 days 23,566 6,846
181—270 H 181 — 270 days 6,130 5,295
270 H Over 270 days 16,941 11,476

77,165 70,793
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20. JEWORZK (@)

HER A EIURTOA —FFNENA =+HZ
OB AR S R T (ELAR S

R AR ] 25 R W 2 B A ) Rk

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The directors consider the fair values of the trade receivables at 30 April 2008

approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are neither individually

JEMCER 5 2 BRI AT AR nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:—

A

Group
ZERR)N\E B
2008 2007
T THTT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
A HA IR AAE BE Neither past due nor impaired 30,528 47,176
7 90 i 75 A1 H Less than 6 months past due 23,566 6,846
7 1 75 8 H Over 6 months past due 23,071 16,771
77,165 70,793

21. FEW (RERY) % P & %) TR

AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

% CONTRACT WORK
RN\ TR
2008 2007
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
RHEHTEE TR - Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
KA R T A Contract costs incurred to date plus attributable profits
It A L R e R less recognised losses 222,905 308,000
WS B MR A I Progress payments received and receivable (196,275) (302,791)
26,630 5,209
Ve AT 5 Analysed for reporting purposes as:
JEWCE P & %) TR Amount due from customers for contract work 45,993 20,875
JEAT %5 5 & 4 LA R Amount due to customers for contract work (19,363) (15,666)

26,630 5,209

1
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22, H{th A%

H A S 055 B A B WA R B AR [ 0
TN AR > e R H A BB~ BB
A B kR A 2R > DL SR TAS BR e Bl 4 o

R S 25 2 ) B 3 ] 2 35 COF AU AT
o B AR R -

SRAT 5 B S B 45 AR 4 [ P R B < R JRT R
= AR SRR B0 2 S U SR AT A o A 4R
ZARITAIERL O JE 2 3 JHANSE 2RI o

HRRDAZFER FFNENA =+ B Z W
PEE 2N BB AR T {ELAR 2

23, FEAH Bk B 3 At EA+F sk JH

JE A5 B 2k K H: At B AT 3k TH B 45 RE AT HE 3K
10,881,000 % J& ( — & & £ 4F : 14,047,000 #5
Jt) > HARE TR

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets include bills receivable, retention monies receivable,
prepayment, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from associates and a

jointly controlled entity, and bank balances and cash.

The amounts due from associates and a jointly controlled entity are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 3% for both years.

The directors consider that the fair values of these financial assets as at 30 April

2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of HK$10,881,000
(2007: HK$14,047,000) with an aged analysis as follow:

SR BB

2008 2007

T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

0—90H 0—90 days 4,494 13,381
91—180 H 91 — 180 days 2,103 315
181—270 H 181 — 270 days 2,280 117
270 H Over 270 days 2,004 234
10,881 14,047

S 8 2 M A R A B A B A SR IEIR — R TN
FEA = H 2 A FE A BRI (EAR A o

The directors consider the fair values of the trade and other payables at 30 April

2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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24, BREM AR

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

SR AR AH #9685k s B 4948wk BAE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
ZREN\E “EFLHF —“REN\G “ERTLE
2008 2007 2008 2007
T# TH#IT R THIT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—4F N Within one year 503 208 452 194
R RN In the second to fifth
(B E R WAE) year inclusive 1,170 80 1,063 67
1,673 288
Bk SRR RS2 Less: future finance charges (158) 27)
T EARYE 2 BifH Present value of lease
obligations 1,515 261 1,515 261
W R — AR E Less: Amount due within
AT 2 I G I one year shown under
B A EIH N FmR) current liabilities 452) (194)
AR B HA S A5 2 30 Amount due after one year 1,063 67

ARSI 2 BOR 7 DA A AT B TR - P
WHEFEMRA =4 - #E_FFZNELH =+
HARAERE > P9 BEREFIRA M 6 JE o A5
T &) H AT RE o P AR A 3% B 52 R
e H S MR SR SR ARG SL & B -

ASAE ) 2 Rl AR A R DA AR RS A )
T7 A -

R R B AR AR YE 2 P E TR
PRAG FHAR AR B G W B AR A3 H 2 5 i A R
PrBl 2 BUH - FCEUARE AR I (EA AT o

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles under finance
leases. The average lease term is three years. For the year ended 30 April 2008,
the average effective borrowing rate was approximately 6% per annum. Interest
rates were fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis

and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge

over the leased assets.

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s finance lease obligations,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date

approximates to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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25. BATH BANK BORROWINGS
ZRENGE “ERTLE
2008 2007
R THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
AT Z T - Bank borrowings analysed as:
AL Secured 19,403 26,942
AL Unsecured 22,707 24,682
42,110 51,624
BT LT HIBR AR - The borrowings are repayable as follows:
FEEOR B — N On demand or within one year 31,376 39,618
—4F 2 4R More than one year, but not exceeding two years 1,185 1,172
WA 28 AR More than two years, but not exceeding five years 2,674 2,993
A AR After five years 6,875 7,841
42,110 51,624
B AR N R 2 R IH Less: Amount due within one year shown under
(A B & B T 5ImR) current liabilities (31,376) (39,618)
A AR B WA S A 2 3K IH Amount due after one year 10,734 12,006

7% S5 [ T A5 B 3R DA T A (B > Sl 2 VR B
o ALAEE HARE R B A RS AT F/
V5 I PR SR 6 ([ e P HA 3R ) 9 0.5 T 22 o 45 2
FIZEN0.75 8 o (ZFZ-LAF « fefB B2 0.5
JE & AN 0.75 ) o

B AR R AT R R T TSR SR AG
RERACH S B AR 45 H B IRF T 35 A e i 8
< BUE > HEAIS IR (AR o

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
are variable-rate borrowings as at the balance sheet date, bearing interest at
prevailing market rates, ranging from Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (the
“Prime Rate”) minus 0.5% per annum to Prime Rate plus 0.75% per annum
(2007: Prime Rate minus 0.5% per annum to Prime Rate plus 0.75% per

annum).

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s bank borrowings,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date,

approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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26. EHEFLIE DEFERRED TAX

T 51 B 7 A P A A A B R A A R 2 The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the

TR ARV I (B ) AR RS2 E) Group and movements thereon during the current and prior years.
T S A B
Accelerated
BiIE R tax HAth At
Tax losses depreciation Others Total
T T T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
NZEENFERA—H At 1 May 2006 293 (2,827) = (2,534)
SR R Charge to consolidated
income statement 133 (269) - (136)
R AT RS 2 HE A Underprovision in prior years (20) - - (20)

R_BRLER R4 At 30 April 2007

WA= 1H and 2008 406 (3,096) - (2,690)
AEEH H R R IRAEBLE B (A ) IR - Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets/(liabilities) at the balance sheet date

are as follows:

SRBAE  CEELE

2008 2007
T#7t THIT
HKS$°000 HK$°000

e T B IE S B AE Excess of tax allowances over depreciation (102) (102)
RARIERIIE 5 18 Unabsorbed tax losses 863 863
761 761

H 7 F 45 T 1 A U e v TR o BRSOl S The deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the financial statements due
TERRIR AL B JE G 7 o BiTEUES 45 ] REAE PR 5 o to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

27. HAbSAH A OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
HoAth s B AR AL HE R A R ] <2 O R SRATIBE L Other financial liabilities include retention monies payable and bank overdrafts.

RGP LEZER _FE)FENH =+ H 2 5 The directors consider that the fair values of these financial liabilities as at 30
B2 AT (B B S R T (AR 2 o April 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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28. kA SHARE CAPITAL
6y % H Hm
Number of shares Amount
THTT
HK$°000
g R THT(H.0.01 #5702 5 40 i Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
BE Authorised:
R TR At 30 April 2006
“FEEENHA=1H and 2007 800,000,000 8,000
B SBAS (BFGE (0) Increase in authorised capital (note (i) 1,200,000,000 12,000
2,000,000,000 20,000
CLEAT MBI Issued and fully paid:
MoEE LN A =+ H At 30 April 2007 476,194,200 4,762
HRYE LA AR S AT e A Issue of shares pursuant
B TR LA to scrip dividend scheme for
AR (BT (i) 2007 final dividend (note (ii)) 3,269,955 33
MR R IR R T ) B4 T Issue of shares under share
Je o (B 5E (i) option scheme (note (iii)) 20,310,000 203
e et (BT (iv) 22 (v) Placing of shares (note (iv) & (v)) 90,000,000 900
IS BHEEE R0y (B RE (vi)) Open offer of shares (note (vi)) 145,568,538 1,455
W_ZE)\EMH=1H At 30 April 2008 735,342,693 7,353
BEEE Notes:
(i) WMZEFEFENEZHATZH o ARLNFE LA R (i)  On 13 March 2008, the Company announced its proposal to increase its authorised
ik E B 1B A AMNE R 1,200,000,000 A4 capital from HK$8,000,000 divided into 800,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to
JBTHT . 0.01 U5 JC 2 AR BEAT LA > 905 8 A HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each by the creation
i 8,000,000 5 JT (43 4 800,000,000 A% 45 [ T8I {EL of additional 1,200,000,000 unissued shares of HK$0.01 each. A circular detailing the
0.01 %5 70 2 M7 34 fim 2 20,000,000 ¥ 7T (43 54 proposed capital increase together with notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting
2,000,000,000 B4 AL T {E 0.01 #s o 2 i) © & was made on 1 April 2008. An ordinary resolution was duly passed at the Extraordinary
B i 1 I JEAS 15 B A Tl B oRK 8 2 7 5 General Meeting held on 21 April 2008 and the proposed increase in authorised capital
CRR AR A — AR o A FE A F of the Company was approved.
b HERAT 2 R IR ROR v DA A TR R SR
T LU - BEhNEE E RAS 2 da AEARAEE -
(i) REFFELFELA=+—H > ARFMRE_F (ii)  On 31 October 2007, the Company issued and allotted a total of 3,269,955 shares of
ZLEIA L HFETRRZUBRRER HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.452 in lieu of cash for the 2007 final dividends
HE K > DA 0.452 95 00 2 AT K L EE A AL pursuant to the scrip dividend circulars dispatched to shareholders on 17 September
3,269,955 A R I {E 0.01 Hs TT e fy - BAFREE — 2007. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.
TRNERABIGE o 5% B0y BB LA
TEAS T A A RS
(i) MAE|RE_FFTNEWNA =+ H L4 E (ili)  During the year ended 30 April 2008, 20,310,000 share options were exercised at an

20,310,000 173 i A HEHE AT - P X RR BAE 1y
J8£0.3753 570 » R #4720,310,000 R AE B 1 (i
0.01 #5762 AR A F) 3 g

average subscription price of HK$0.3753 per share, resulting in the issue of 20,310,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.
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it

(iv)

)

(vi)

29.

HE—TZ)\FPH=+HAIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

IREA (1)
)

/= S o o ) & ey el = I NN TS
ATHEF AR RS A (T 7 ) B ) I il B AR
FRET 7 AL KRR Tk > SR () B O R R
T i 5 AR 3L ) 225 o 7K B A DA 458 G T 5 IR 493 0.2
5 70 2 T B 18 42 £ i B B 22 45 3£ 59,000,000 %
T sy 2 BE 5 B 5 I (i) B 7 [ O 4 e R
JBE A5 0.2 W5 I 2 58 BAE (HR 55 A e 58D R B 2
A/ ) ) A T 3 B AT AR A6 A T B T P
Z LS B B H 2 GRS R A - A = E LR
A=+—H > B 5E kBB H T 8 A
11,500,000 %5 76 E% FH A8 28 R UL o

R EREEANANH > B AN F &
A5 AR RT 3 e B KRR T T o SR () 5 W
B R B B AR LR A 1) R AC A DA A
B 430.238 W5 It 2 it 65 1R 4 i it B B 2 A 3t
31,000,000 [ B4y 2 T 85 A 5 K (i) B 5 Rl &
e 4 P B RS 03 0.238 5 TT 2 BRI AE (AH 45 A Fi
) GBI M AR A T () R o R AT R 4 P
AETE R BT L B 2 Bl A B 2 GRS - R
TERERLENA T > B LA RS
FRIE AR F5 7,200,000 TG E H AN FICHR o

RoFENEZH+=H > AN A LAY
BRI A R AT — B 45 R A BR e 1 75 K
7 BR B B 145,568,538 % HT B 10 > 45 i R A
0.12¥7C » A FZT/FEMA —+ = H » &R
A DA A 0.12 W5 T 85 AT K e % 3 145,568,538
JE A BT (B 0.01 5 TCAE Ay » A = \4F P A
b H S B B o B L R I BT A5 K SR R A
17,500,000 ¥5 76 E% FH A28 R UL o

Bl JB M )

AN A BT — 4+ —H T 1 H R4
Z WEIREST ] ([5HE) ) » AR RFEFEG ([FHE
& ) A A RE I A A ] SO AR T B A R
ZRNAR B (R4 A 2 A 3CHAT AR B & 2wl =
A7 ~ FERAT BB I AT ) B2 Ak R RE > LA
REEA A A RSy FEBE RSB E R R A&
AR B o ARITFB B A 28 R AT ] HoAth i e RES
B2 T 1 AR AT 2 9T A B R A T8 T T LA
BT Z A R HEFT B 2 AARAFRR R RA
R A B AR B B T RAS 30% ©

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  On 22 May 2007, Mr. So Yu Shing (“the Vendor”), the Chairman and executive director
of the Company, entered into a Placing and Subscription Agreement with the Company
and the Placing Agent, pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed to place and the
Placing Agent has agreed to procure the placing of 59,000,000 shares to the placees
at the Placing Price of HK$0.2 per Placing Share; and (ii) the Vendor has agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has agreed to allot and issue the Subscription Shares,
which are equal to the number of the Placing Shares that it places under the Placing, at
the Subscription Price of HK$0.2 per Subscription Share. On 31 May 2007, the Placing
was completed and the net proceeds of the Subscription amounted to HK$11.5 million
were received by the Company.

V) On 8 June 2007, the Vendor entered into a Placing and Subscription Agreement with
the Company and the Placing Agent, pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed to
place and the Placing Agent has agreed to procure the placing of 31,000,000 shares to
the placees at the Placing Price of HK$0.238 per Placing Share; and (ii) the Vendor has
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has agreed to allot and issue the Subscription
Shares, which are equal to the number of the Placing Shares that it places under the
Placing, at the Subscription Price of HK$0.238 per Subscription Share. On 20 June
2007, the Placing was completed and the net proceeds of the Subscription amounted to
HK$7.2 million were received by the Company.

(vi)  On 13 March 2008, the Company announced an open offer of 145,568,538 new
shares on the basis of one offer share per every four existing shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.12 each. On 22 April 2008, the Company issued and allotted a total of
145,568,538 shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.12 each. The open offer
was completed on 22 April 2008 and the net proceeds of the subscription amounted to
HK$17.5 million was received by the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 25 November 2001 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of
providing incentive to directors and eligible employees, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer full-time
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, subject to the
conditions set out in the Option Scheme, exceed 30% of the issued share capital

of the Company from time to time.
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29. FEBERESTH ()

PRI AT 07 = A8 3 S0 P ) AR A2 N L 452 ) R 7
B2 2 PR (L4 O 47 o % 14 AR A ok g S )
M AT Bl T BRIT 2 B BB A - A58
AN F CEAT AL 1% > BRIF (a) R
TR 5 (b) AL HERZ AR A Bt 1 PR
ZIHICHE o BRI T I R R ZE A SEGUARUE 1
T o

REMEE Ty S R G AT o AR (2) 3
etz B> A BT TR T >
A R I R 2 H TR 2 B A S i R
JIr A F B A B AR 2 T 5 (b) B AR
B FBCHE IR AL S H > s Et B BT
T RMPE - BEEREGERR LR
H Al € H PR R S B 4 H R AE R PR 2
R 0 R SR 2 P BT 5 K (o) Bt T
B s =F B HE -

AR A B 2 AR o T P B A S AL
RN 0[] 19 i R 2 B B A A7 08 - MEAR 4%
A B 2 AR AT AT (G B RE 2 U TS A
HIPE L ERBERE 2 FE HEE AF o ARYE AT 2
Ak > S0 488 Bl 7 6 ZE 4 A R BB o S 3 ] il R
REFRBLH AT AT (B — SR

RP#Id SR A 2T —4F+— A+ HH
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless (a) a shareholder circular
is dispatched to the shareholders; and (b) the shareholders approve the grant of
the options in excess of the limit referred to herein. A nominal consideration of

HKS$1 is payable on acceptance of each grant.

The subscription price was determined by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme apply, on the
date of the Board proposing such grant; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme
apply, the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the Board proposing such grant; and (c) the

nominal value of the shares.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee that the period within which the option may be exercised shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the offer of the grant of the
options is made in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. There is
no general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must be
held or the performance target which must be achieved before an option can be

exercised under the terms of the Option Scheme.

The Option Scheme became effective for a period of ten years commencing

from 25 November 2001, the date of adoption.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of movements in the Company’s share options held by employees

FEIEAE (including directors) are as follows:
R-Z%LE REZBBNE
LA-H WA= 1A
TR FRHERH JRRHERH
(BHHERA) Number of LAl R B Number of
BB\ ik Exercisable period e share options Exercised Granted Cancelled share options
2008 Date granted (both dates inclusive) Exercise price at 1.5.2007 during the year during the year during the year at 30.4.2008
i
HKS
5 e < S i ey | SEREFRACTARE 0381 15,000,000 (15,000000) = = =
Directors 21 May 2002 “EFNVERAZTLH
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“EERLELAAR “FFENATERE 0.60 - - 17,200,000 - 17,200,000
§ October 2007 ZR-ENA A
15 April 2008 to
14 April 2014
15,000,000 (15,000,000) 17,200,000 - 17,200,000
&8 e < S i oy | SEREERACTARE 0381 5,000,000 (4.910,000) (40,000) 50,000
Employees 21 May 2002 “ERNERLAZTER
28 May 2003 o
27 May 2009
“EEWEZRHA CERRECATCRE 0,094 400,000 (400,000) = =
5 February 2004 “E——FZA+-H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
“RELEHIAR “FR\ENATIAE 0.60 - - 19,770,000 (940,000) 18,830,000
§ October 2007 R ERAHLH
15 April 2008 to
14 April 2014
5,400,000 (5,310,000 19,770,000 (980,000) 18,880,000
20,400,000 (20,310,000) 36,970,000 (980,000) 36,080,000
T4 17 6
Weighted average exercise price 0375 0375 .106 0.60 0.60
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29, M REGH B (a)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

REFENE REZZLE
fH—H NA=1H
TEREMIR JERRER JERRERH
(BHERRH) Number of AR ATE AE LSS Number of
“23LE RELBH Exercisable period it share options Exercised Cancelled  share options
2007 Date granted (both dates inclusive) Exercise price at 1.5.2006 during the year  during the year at 30.4.2007
T
HKS
HH CEECERASF-H CEEZERA-HARE 0.381 18,000,000 (3,000,000) = 15,000,000
Directors 21 May 2002 “ZTHERAZTLH
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“ZZNE_ATH “EZTHE_ATHE 0.094 9,400,000 (9,400,000) = =
5 February 2004 “Z——HEZ[t—H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
27,400,000 (12,400,000) - 15,000,000
3] CEECERASF-H ZFEZERA-HARE 0.381 5,130,000 = (130,000 5,000,000
Employees 21 May 2002 “ZTHERAZ LA
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“ZENE_ATH “EZTHE_ATHE 0.094 710,000 (150,000) (160,000) 400,000
5 February 2004 “Z——HEZ[+—H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
5,840,000 (150,000) (290,000) 5,400,000
33,240,000 (12,550,000) (290,000) 20,400,000
TITREF 7 1
Weighted average exercise price 0.294 0.163 0.223 0.375

A ZFRENAEMA =10 REFHI TR L & At 30 April 2008, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
R AT 2 A HE A B 2 4 B E A AR A R granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was 4.9% (2007: 4.3%) of
% A C AT IR BOE 2 4.9% (R L4 - the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

4.3%) °
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29. FEBERESTH ()

TAAE 3 H 1 B PR 2 A T 4% T —TE 0 )
FEERE T o BRI 1Y EE IR A
T4 1 H A A 45 1 0.6 78 ~ AT (A 45 1B 0.6
TG~ AR ] R 2 T U R AE 52% - S RCHE
O TE A AR 3 6.5 4F ~ TR, 1.32% ~ MU 4F
FIZE4.196% ~ FF4- MRk Lo 2 20% (Bt 3 51 5 )
% 40.68% (GBLAE BT 5) o MR E M BRERE A A
TP BB 2 A7 (18 I 22 200% (R R T 5 ) 2
150% (iR BT 5 ) IREA T8 B AR -

P IR R B2 1 U IRE R 7 H AR AR -
R BN H =1 H kw4 R A
12t B B

30. A BB R RELR

A7 ) — [ BB 2 R 2 A B SR ] Al 1 % M
J&§ 2w A BUBOR 2 MEAL 1R > R > D BUBOR
B A 8 e A v D BOBORME AR 2 RS AR KB
7 B R S EE o

31. ZEEBERS

RBEETNENA=+HIEFEER > A
45 [ 5k 6 7 R T O Al S e Bk > ALY BR 4
> 484 A B 491,580,000 #6 7T ( — F & L 4E ¢
381,000 #:7T) o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of options granted during the year was determined by using the
Binomial valuation model. The significant inputs into the model were share
price of HK$0.6 per share at the grant date, exercise price of HK$0.6 per share,
expected volatility of the Company’s share price: 52% per annum, expected
life of options of 6.5 year, expected 1.32% dividend yield, annual risk-free
interest rate of 4.196% per annum, rate of leaving service of 20% per annum for
directors and 40.68% per annum for employees and assume option holders will
exercise their options when the share price is at least 200% for directors and

150% for employees of the exercise price.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 7 days from the date of
grant. No options were granted during each of the two years ended 30 April

2007.

MINORITY INTEREST

The minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company has agreed to make
good the minority’s share of losses of the subsidiary, and accordingly, the
losses applicable to the minority exceeding the minority interest in the equity is

recognised as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 April 2008, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of assets with a total capital value at the inception of the
leases of HK$1,580,000 (2007: HK$381,000).
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32. HEEHHW

TRESEH > AR A R 51 A 2 A SR
T — JBCARAT R Z R

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group has pledged the following assets as

securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

ZEZE)NE —EE A

2008 2007

Tt THETT

HK$°000 HKS$’000

BEYE Investment properties 18,400 14,600
T &R IE Prepaid lease payments 4,795 4919
T Buildings 12,300 12,000

33. BiARfAfE
MoBE/NENA=+H REELL > &
A5 B G AT 95 1 2 B 4 (R B S 1 GRAT 1
7,313,000 #5 UG ( —FEL4F 8,619,000 #590) 2
B o
34. R
()  HEEFHARIE K2k

FKIEMIE L RFN

TRESFEH > A EARGEAR ] SR A
T 50 93 o 38 R A 22 R A e AL B

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2008, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$7,313,000 (2007: HK$8,619,000) to banks for surety bonds issued by the
banks in respect of construction contracts.

COMMITMENTS

(i)  Operating lease commitments and arrangements

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

ARIET fall due as follows:
“EREN\E LA
2008 2007
F#n T
HK$’000 HK$°000
—4EN Within one year 980 556
AR RS HAE (B E R WAR) In the second to fifth year inclusive 413 4
1,393 560

REMATRE S THTEEATHEREZ
4 o FHAT LIS = 4 5kaT - e
Wi = NHERFANSE

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its
office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average

term of three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.
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34, A )

()  KREFHARME Pk ()
REEFIE 3 RN

JRESEH > ARG BB F R SR AR AR

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)  Operating lease commitments and arrangements (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the

TS HIERT A4 ¢ following future minimum lease payments:
e = -2 “ERELE
2008 2007
Tt THETT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
—4ER Within one year 532 536
B FERAF (B EEWE) In the second to fifth year inclusive - 532
532 1,068

AR R =g B Az DL — 4R 4F 8] 5 o

35. B AT E

MR RTAET T H— A AEETEAL
A S H A s B A B TR G Gk B L2 iR
Sntdl o mAESFH A BB ANEEZE
MG 3 o AREMBE ST H > A [ A R
B B AR A ] M 2 4 T 10 T R R A (R B i
AZ 5% ¥R H AR LA BL1L,000% 75 4
PR > FESMZ Ak B B RS -

R EE A Wt RN BR 2 BAAR 1,067,000 95 06 (—F
FAE 11,200,000 #50) 15 A5 8] (7] 55 7 4 HEAE
A -

Leases are negotiated and rental are fixed for terms of one year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all qualifying
employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to join the
MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and
the employees make monthly contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions

are voluntary.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of HK$1,067,000
(2007: HK$1,200,000) represents contributions payable to the MPF Scheme by
the Group.
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36. BHEEANLRY

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

S BB b 2 S EREE I RS R AR B
B A MEE -

() FEEHAEME

RN > 3 5 St o 2 A B g Al B 2 <
B

()  TREEAR - A B N ST SRR A (i)  During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
5 - related parties:
BB\ R
2008 2007
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000
JE[F] EE B 2 A jointly controlled entity

FEMARAS Z 43 1 B 52 Subcontracting expenses of scaffolding services 1,892 686
I3 FNA Subcontracting income 755 165

Details of the balances with the Group’s related parties are set out in the

consolidated balance sheet and respective notes.

(ii)) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during

the year was as follows:

SRR\ T

2008 2007

T#7u THsTT

HK$°000 HK$°000

i HA A A Short-term benefits 7,193 6,323
BARAE R Post-employment benefits 64 66
7,257 6,389

i YER 3 8 YN PAU TR AL ES SR
R A B A5 T A R B T R I E o

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the
Remuneration Committee or senior management having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.



B A 05 WA Bk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—TZ)\FPH=+HAIZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2008

37. S5 R K B H AR R BUR

AL 2 T2 T A O - YR
O EUCR & &) TR - EURE 5 - T
PRI~ $e g e EL A RESORR ~ RE MO /3
ARIA > MR [A] f2 4 SRR - SRATRGBR L
&~ BEATERAR AL R - AR F &4
TRERIE AT ORI B s OH M ERAT K o #45%
WS T HGEI IR 45 M RE4R R o T SO S 5%
Vs T ELA ) o JRL B o e g 1 % 45 J Bk 2 B
R o A B Y RS S AR o DARRECR K
AN R UR B 2 1t -

i B Bt

i3y i =R A =+ H RAEIRAT 15
ZORYE o JUIAS SR I M L T R S T2
HRZ 2 R AR 7 B R AR S B E BARS
(H 2 B2 2 R T B AU ol A A 4 ) B AR
HZMREEY RARBEZEF » AEBK
SEAR A5 BB o F dme R B BE M R A
B > A< SR I RGO T A BR R E £ R R
TR BER AL S At B e 1 e 2 BORE > DU PR SR I
PR AEE £ Tt W [ R A 2 (O o BEAL o TR RS
BH > AR PP Al A SEUAR 9 SR R 2 T i ]
B > DURE QR WL A wT Wi o] <5 B8 P 1R 2 (e
HE R - LTS > ERER AL ZF
BRI E R R AR

SRATAF sk 2 M5 BB Al 8 A PR - R 8
SRAT A5 A] 5 2 4 AN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include bills receivable, trade
receivables, amount due from customers for contract work, retention monies
receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
associates, amount due from a jointly controlled entity, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amount due to customers for contract work, retention
monies payable and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparts’
failure to perform their obligations as at 30 April 2008 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk as the carrying amounts of the receivables are arising from a limited
number of customers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has policies in place for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

the management considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks

and creditworthy financial institutions.
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37. B E b B H AR B BOR (0

RS i

DTS BB 4247 £ R R 5 T 2 1 8
8 T T S LT R % I S 1
BT A RIS o % A LR A
st MR 0 7 58 4 5 8 P 196 Sk 4 5
BRI B 2 BT 2 A -

1l ) 38800k 1% T BT AT A 88 B R
g AREEEE FF/\FENH =1 HIEFE
B 3 ) B 222 N4 H =+ H £~ B i A
I A 380 743,000 85 0T ( FE LA B
D/ HN619,0009T5) o BE TG E K H AL ]
TR R ERAT B A R R

A 2 T ) R 3 R B2 B 2 A A LI A T R

BEAE

A ) A AE B B R R A A T A
RERRES » AR EA R > DSR2
55 AR e J R [ i

ASAE A R LA SR o Sl A ER O Y A
B A B B A R AR S T R R
oy R B B AR IR > A S I T R A B
SRR ~ 1] R R (] A BB AT R o AR SR
P AN SZ AT AT A1 A B FF) A B2 TR » 0
CERFNEWNH=Z+HEFRFLENA =+
HRAFRE > 7 ok AR~ BURERRF -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that a change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that date.
A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 April 2008 and the retained
profits as of 30 April 2008 would decrease/increase by HK$743,000 (2007:
decrease/increase by HK$619,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s

exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed significantly from the

prior year.

Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital

ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 30 April 2008 and 30 April 2007.
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37. B E b B H AR B BOR (0

7% B2 18 {71 E A A P 3R (B AR A A RR AR
) BHER o M A TEIEIH R ST iR R A&
A RYE o S5 H 2 EEAMHRINT -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided
by the total capital. Total debt includes interest-bearing bank borrowings and
obligations under finance lease. The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates

were as follows:—

AR

Group
SEEAE BB
2008 2007
Tt THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
M B ERAT A Interest-bearing bank borrowings 69,471 79,167
A 44 7 3 Obligations under finance lease 1,515 261
FEM Total debt 70,986 79,428
Mg Total capital 105,252 53,214
HE AR Gearing ratio 67% 149%

B4 v B ) 3 B Cash flow interest rate risk

A A I R PR B M) A 2 RAT R A R SRAT A K
T 355 8 T 7R 3% ) 23 58 ) 2 B 4 o A M) 0 J e
7SR 6] Sf7 4 o) S BOSRE oh A 3R o ARSR E BE r
B R HE PR 3 2 R A BBl B,

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the changes in
interest rates relates mainly to the Group’s variable-rates bank borrowings and
bank deposits and balances. The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. The management of the Group would monitor and manage its exposure

to fluctuation in interest rates.
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37. B E b B H AR B BOR (0

B A b

FUZ WIS A ARG L WS > %
P 75 ¥ 2 B 7R At f 55 L DR Gt T B R 2
G o SR LR AR R4 L DR
2B © B RIS R
bR -

B Il B

A1 JEL i 2 i < L A R A1 I B % 2
T8 P LR o

ASR RS2 2 SN B EEEAR F 2S5 o BIRAGR
SERSHIB < il B I BB o AR
2R EE MM R ETT o AL REE
AT IR — B W S B AR i B

AT A

A — 4 B 2 4 i R B 2 (RE SRR AR
B PRAR ©

PR A B 2Nt 2 6 R 2 TR B < L B 2 e ] PR
W Z BRAR I ek & B 6 5 > 00l e 2 74
SHEBRZATE -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims at maintaining the flexibility in funding by arranging
banking facilities. Therefore, the liquidity risk is closely monitored by the

directors.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through transactions
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Macau Pataca and United States dollar. The Group mitigates this risk

by conducting transactions in the same currency, whenever possible.

Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less

than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been determined as
the timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably

determined because of the relationship.
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follows:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are as

ZERF)\E TR
2008 2007
T THsoo
HK$’000 HK$°000
B AR Trade receivables
T Macau Patacas 33,139 25,206
JEIRE P A 49 TR I Amount due from customers for contract work
T Macau Patacas 15,266 198
JRE SR i 453 3K TR Retention monies receivable
T Macau Patacas 5,466 5,005
TANTHIE ~ Hie s S HABMEWGKIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivable
T Macau Patacas 2,829 264
SRATHS R B4 Bank balances and cash
ek Macau Patacas 115 2,240
AR Renminbis 129 151
£IT United States dollars 273 283
B 5y I HoAh R Trade and other payables
ek Macau Patacas 6,190 5,460
[ Euros 825 386
NG Renminbis - 10
LT Singapore dollars - 159
JEAT &P A4 TR I Amount due to customers for contract work
ek Macau Patacas 10,272 5,929
JREAS) % ] 48 I Retention monies payable
ki Macau Patacas 114 1,064
JEA LI Tax payable
T Macau Patacas 1,598 1,262
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38. 5 AR A R A
1

U A A B O T 51 AT RE SR AC AR [ A
CEFNEN H = B AR 2 PR ER AR R AR B
ZAERT ~ BRI Rk - —

RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which may be/are relevant to the preparation of the Group’s

financial statements for the accounting period after 30 April 2008:—

RUF A2 R B 4k 2
5t IR A 3%
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

v e e ISR RSE 15 (RUERT)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

A i MR RS 2 5% (53T
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

7 v B R R 5 3 5% (RUBRT)
HKEFRS 3 (Revised)

eV B o 4 5 8 5
HKFRS 8

v et e A S 23 5% (REHT)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

B et e IS 27 5% (RE7T)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

il (BEUHHRERREES) — R RE 1295
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

il (BRI SRR E) — RS 1395
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

Bk (BB R R A ) — R 1498
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

BT R 2 R 20094E1 H 1 H
Presentation of Financial statements 1 January 2009
Bt P ot — B G ke B 20094F1 H 1 H

Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

1 January 2009

XA 20094E7H 1 H
Business Combinations 1 July 2009
"R 200941 H 1 H
Operating Segments 1 January 2009
A 20094F1 H 1 H

Borrowing Costs

1 January 2009

A6 BUB ST BE S IR 20094E7 H 1 H
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2009
s A 2 B 200841 H 1 H
Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008
bt b 20084F7 H 1 H
Customer Loyaity Programmes 1 July 2008
B a5 19 9% — e Fl 4 R 2 PR - 200841 H 1 H

S A R i DA S ELAR BR 1R
HKAS 19-The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

1 January 2008
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PR A B AR 2 SR~ Har iR pr iRt
JE i DR S ~ R 2 Ml R KRR 2

A T B0 TE A 5% 568 T AT B A T v B
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A e EHERSE 1 5 (BT > B BB s e
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39. mAERAL

REERNENA=+H ERFAARERZ
AR BN L BRI

RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 8 applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The
standard supersedes HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting” under which segments
were identified and reported on risk and return analysis. HKFRS 8 sets out
requirements for disclosure of information about the Group’s operating

segments, the products and services provided by its segments, the geographical

areas in which it operates, and its major customers.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new
and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that while
the adoption of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 8 may result in new and
amended disclosures, the other new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a

significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 30 April 2008, the directors consider the Group’s ultimate controlling party

to be Mr. So Yu Shing.
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40. A2 W) B E A W aE R PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

HECTE/ENH =1+ H EEMEA A (335 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies,

ARFAEAE) FEE0T at 30 April 2008 are as follows:
KA FRHCBITRA,/
FERRAE CHATRAE o 6 A 2 i P
BB JEA /i A Proportion of
Place of EA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HiEL fully paid up issued share capital/
6 2 ) 44 1 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEEH
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

HE fil %
Directly Indirectly

WLS (BVI) Limited EHELHE HIRAF Lt 100% - REER
38,510 % 7T
British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands company US$38,510
EEEEARAT il HRAT vl - 100%  SEBBY
10,000 %7¢
Graceman Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Manufacturing of plastic ties
company HK$10,000
KRB BA RAT itk HRAT vl - 100%  HEAHIES
10,000 %7€
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Gondolas rental
company HK$10,000
RUEHE HERAR il HIRAT vl - 100% SRR RE
10,000 %7¢
Skyway Transport & Trading Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of transportation
Company Limited company HK$10,000 services
BERETRARA itk HIRAT vl - 0% WL
1,226,667 7C B vt~ B
T Al B
BN b 2 %%
e
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Trading, design, sales,
company HK$1,226,667 repairs and maintenance of
gondolas and parapet

railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance
services
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

AR CRTRA
REMARE,/ CRITRAR sk A 2 T
BB TS/ REME A Proportion of
Place of EA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ TR fully paid up issued share capital/
W 2 ) 44 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital B
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HE fil %
Directly Indirectly
ERe TREEHRAR Fifs HRAR L - 100%  SREERAHMRE
100,000 # ¢
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of management
company HK$100,000 contracting services
JERE (RF7) TR i HRAR L - 100%  HAITRSER
ARAF 25,000 87
WLS (Macau) Engineering Macau Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company MOP25,000
ERE R A PR A itk HRAR il - 100% SRR HRE
100,000 # ¢
Wui Loong Consultancy Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of consultancy services
Company Limited company HK$100,000
ERE S A PR A il ARAF ik - 100%  ERE
100,000 # 7t
Wui Loong Holdings Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Property holding
Company Limited company HK$100,000
TERE A PR A 7 il ARAF ik - 100%  BETEER
287 YEIESIE
IR
ARAETRE (FifE)
1,900,000 ¢
Wui Loong Scaffolding Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Works Company Limited company HK$2 and property investment
Non-voting
deferred (Note)

HKS$1,900,000
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40. AN a] F B A [l i PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RATRH CRTRA
Rk CHTRER sk 2 T
R IR /I A Proportion of
Place of EA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ TR fully paid up issued share capital/
I 2 ) 2 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEET
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
H# e
Directly Indirectly
ERE R AE AL A R ] il ARAT viliie - 100%  BHTREEE
100,000 #7C
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding work business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
TR A A ] il ARAT vilie - 100% SR
100,000 #7¢
Wui Luen Engineering Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Fitting out business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
BRFRE + MR SRR GE SRR N ERES A S, R Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or vote
JEIR K G s 7E & EREE  TRIRHER S B R at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital
TR 5 455 v 2 22 A ] 0 B S (M A I 2t v A v in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after the sum of
IR T A w4 A A 1,000,000 £ 5 HKS$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
TCAE 2 B E B R — 2R A5 RRBRSL) o Company in such winding-up).

T AF S BCAR A AR ] IRF (] 25 B 2 ) A i 47 None of the subsidiaries had any debt security outstanding at the end of the year
AEAT (5 8 05 o or at any time during the year.

B RINEA N 7] RS B B 2R The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
BB 2 AN AR [ A T o FE SRR A B A of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
M o il 2 REAE A R IR A TU R the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

e RESULTS
HEMH=1HILFE
Year ended 30 April
“ERF\E CETEE CFERE CEFRE CEFRNE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Tkt Tt Tt TT T
HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS’000
(H31)
(restated)
e Turnover 184,315 220,006 148,503 176,393 135,237
A Cost of sales (148,485)  (183,308) (118,436) (143,833) (116,091)
EA Gross profit 35,830 36,698 30,067 32,560 19,146
HAobfe A Other income 675 851 501 651 627
FTBLB S Administrative expenses (29,880) (26,945) (22.813) (25,907) (28,140)
BEWENTEE Increase in fair value of investment
Z 3 properties 3,800 1,517 500 800 500
[ S 3 Surplus (deficit) on revaluation of
(fes k) buildings 244 167 311 (721) =
A Finance costs (4,576) (4,686) (2,503) (2,050) (1,731)
il - UNTES Share of results of associates - (66) (15) 21 (83)
JREA e ] ) Share of results of jointly controlled
XS entities 171) 3) 378 113 =
BRBEAI A (1R Profit (loss) before taxation 5,922 7,533 6,424 5,467 (9,681)
B Taxation 1,115) (1,171) (1,587) (1,278) 862
AREEFERF (1) Profit (loss) for the year 4,807 6,362 4,837 4,189 (8,819)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

<99 §=L ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RMA=+H
At30 April
“ERF\E CETEE CFERE CEFRE CEFRNE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Tikx T T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
(E51)
(restated)
BEE Total assets 221,812 179,996 117,527 99,716 110,957
iyl Total liabilities (116,560)  (126,782) (73.414) (58,153) (73,531)
105,252 53,214 44113 41,563 37,426
/NGl EEE DN Bquity attributable to equity
HEAG 4 holders of the Company 106,663 53,701 44316 42,086 37,991
DRI A Minority interests 1,411) (487) (203) (523) (565)
105,252 53,214 44113 41,563 37,426
BEGE - Note:
R 2 AR 2B RN AR A =1 B IR AR B SR AN s B The above financial summary prior to 2004 has not been adjusted for the effect on the changes
W e R o R U A i 2 A 8 A in the accounting policies as a result of the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
rat BUR S B 2 S8 AR iR TR E RS Standards starting from the year ended 30 April 2006, as the directors considered that it is not
TE e FIAT 2 B practical to do so.
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTIES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 30 APRIL 2008

G 440t T 480 1A A4 [ Al
L/ 3230 ik (FFMR) R [ ENEpid
Approximate
gross floor area Percentage of the
Description Use (square feet) Status Group’s interest
1) FWEEFETYT kil 1,130 7 E 100%
B 1195 Commercial Vacant
FAMERE S A E 10 122-23 %
Unit 22-23
10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, HK
2) FBEFEUEFEI kil 2,285 thAH 100%
SEHLAE 1198 Commercial Rental
FAMERE S A E 10 125-27 %
Unit 25-27
10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, HK
3) WELT kil 2,881 thAH 100%
AL EE T 2 5% Commercial and Rental
M B & residential

Flat B on 1/F,

Mountain View Mansion
No. 2 Swatow Street
Hong Kong
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R A R A A (T4 ) sRT7 =
ZRNENH T ILH (BWHE) T4 k=1
B 7 s A e 0 T S L 11 S T 3
1044 1001 — 1006 % 2247 & A F K& > FELIE
RS It

1. AR E R/ UFH =+ H 1k
EENEELA B IRE - EHE R
SR 7

2. EHBEBAEEFURMANFRESEG (#
&) e E I

3. FREEZRUEAR N R A A R
LIE

B AE R Fe | R IH > 5 R 8 T 5 ek
PR (R A SERT)

TP R

(a) TEAPEE ) BMHRT > KEF
WA 38 5 I BR A w8l 205 25
TR R (A2t BT Al ]) - —
P B At M AR A ) 2 R A A B
AR GEFR R R 30) AT A A H —
VIRES) AT S ~ 384T B S A A )
JBe A r ) AEEAT A > S AE T BB
AT %5 RE ) R M o o 8 Pl el
ik > bk S T RCRE

(b)  ASPERE (a) BT A HLAES P2 b 2
S A B 1A 1R A 1 S g o T B
TEAT R W TR 45 TRAB AT il 5% 55 HE 1 1Y)
AR Tk S IR

JBe SR AR €l o
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Rooms
1001-1006, 10th Floor, Southmark, 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong on 29 August 2008 at 2:30 p.m. to transact the following

ordinary businesses:

1. to receive, consider and approve the audited consolidated financial

statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended
30 April 2008;

2. to re-clect directors and to authorise the board of directors of the

Company (the “Directors”) to fix their remuneration;

3. to re-appoint the Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix

their remuneration;

and, as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

4. THAT:

()

(b)

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with the unissued shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers be and the same

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

R PR AN PR R () BT i it
A 1T 3 K ) 7 A £ £ sl o A 2 i
B (A A2 5 AR 5 I P L i
R T 3 )~ HEAT mhOE B A
T R A AR (AR 4 i) i 508 T (G
&R X)) 5 B () IR 7
JBAE T 1 5%t P AT ] B P AR A AT
{85 B (iid) AR A IR A2 S5 AR A )
A 43 7 AR A0 R AT AT DA AR R B
DL B s Wi S B AT IR A A AR R
334 2 T B A PG B T AT 194 e 07
BRON) > AT T 51 W B A

() APEFEBHPAAFE
PATRATE (E AR 20% 5 X

(i) i A AN N ) R A —
TE J) 37 7 e ek R A -
By AN A AR PRk S8 i 1R
JIT % [m] 14 7% /2 ) A A T {1 %
A (B2 AHAE TR A Pk 2 4 1R
H 7R 2\ ) 2 34T IR A 14 T

{HAE10%) - RARPEZE (a)
BEROPZRE IR L PR 5 T
MARREMNS ¢

[ B[] ) 45 P A R sl 52 7 2 H
A 2N 81 = T B e AR S
fi] :

() AATE]E JE B R A K g &
el

(i)  AEAN F A AT AR
A % 40 Pl 5 BH 2 BE S A {] 28
FEBIRLE - A\ EZEH B
I JiE e R AR K A B T
IR 5 B

(©)

(d)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to options or otherwise), issued or dealt with by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below);
or (ii) the exercise of any option under the share option scheme of
the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment and issue of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on shares in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company in force from time to time, shall not

exceed the aggregate of:

(1) 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this

resolution; and

(i)  (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the nominal
amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by
the Company subsequent to the passing of this resolution (up
to a maximum equivalent to 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
date of the passing of this resolution), and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited

accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i1)) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and
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(2)

(b)

(iii) A A] R O R OK & DA
o 5 PR o € TR B A B
RETR R B .

[THE B 2B S ) 7% 45 1 2 2 T 39 ]
AL A 46 78 RO Bk H I 2 5 AN ) 2
e TR 4% T 69 B 53 4 A N\ 3 5 45
O F5 M Ll il B 2 AR A4 R ey
B 5 B B BT R A R M A
) S S {7 ) A 88 2 (e
A AT B SR B R T AR TR A
Y LASIM) AT AT ] 32 R [ o DA B
AT R T A ] AT A 5 2 5
JIT B8 15 4950 5 A A PR A sl 554
B 2 AT B AR Lt ks )
T A7 P AT R A 5 B4 L o [
MR T 7 B B S HH BRAE Rt - A i R
Py B SRR e BUHA R E) -

TEAREEO)BIHRT > — ik
T SREAGRAF I HE A 2 ) 2 8 A
WM G2 A N30 AT AR T —Y]
Ty > RIS 3 T A BR 2 )
GBS /AN S0 G I
GRS NI R = )
(TR e ) R & 5o A R
O T REBE R AT AT A i DL Ah 2
B2 5 B > & RE e - Al
B TR~ A2 R A A A A
Fe J A FCATE ey T 8 D ) 41
S R A 5

AN AR AR PR 4 (a) BT AL )
R A T T 1 B o ) s ) i
53 T L A A A5 R A AR DR 52 7
A H AR A R BB AT RS T {48 4
10% » AN PRERE (a) B IZHE IR E %
LERR A 5

JBe SR AR €l o
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(iii)) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to
eligible holders of shares in the Company on the register on a fixed
record date in proportion to their then holdings of shares (subject
to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements,
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of, or the expense or delay which may be
involved in determining the existence or extent of any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
jurisdiction outside Hong Kong or any recognised regulatory body

or any stock exchange outside Hong Kong).

S. THAT:

(@)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all
powers of the Company to repurchase its shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
or any other stock exchange outside Hong Kong on which the
shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for such purpose,
and otherwise in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
SFC, the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the
Company and all other applicable laws in this regard, be and the

same is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this
resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this

resolution shall be limited accordingly;
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WA RRAE 5

[ B UI TR ) 48 bl A P St 1 3
2 H =3 i A B R A

fi] :

(@)

(ii)

(iif)

AN )T Ji B AR AR o &
R 5

AN A 2w AR AR K
A0 e 400 B0) B B e A I AT ] 2
FE IR E » AN FZH G B
T JiE R A A K 1 BR
WRE 5 &

A F R R R & LA
700 PR e % R B A Bk
B IR A 2 B

FEER4 B SRS R PUR M IE U R A% -
KA T 82 G 2 S — A > DAAT
AN A HE SRR LA 156 4 TH P s R AL %
BT BORIR BT > RIS AR
FIARAE LA 58 S PR SR T T 2 S M i
Ie] 74 ) e A 4 T (B 2 R MRz R A
HE R A YGRS H AN R C 8Tk
ARARTHEEZ 10% ©

HRE R i
T e FB A B 2 )
BRI

T “EFENELH=+—H

(c) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period”” means the period from the date of the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

6. THAT:

subject to the ordinary resolutions nos. 4 and 5 above being duly passed,
the unconditional general mandate granted to the Directors to exercise
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with unissued shares
pursuant to resolution no. 4 above be and is hereby extended by the
addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to resolution no. 5 above, provided that
such amount shall not exceed 10 percent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the

passing of this resolution.

By order of the Board
WLS Holdings Limited
So Yu Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 July 2008
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BEE S 601-603 = M 605 %

BiFAE -

L JUARED R ARYR b @ & i o bR A R & Rt
Ry EBEERIBOR - ARER IR — (e Z
AR - WAEALN R A R A AR A
Je RSO BUIR T AR« 2 2k
TR R o

2. MRBAERAM I AEE AR E At 4%
RESCA: (BN SRR i A il N8 i D O % 56
B SRS R AS > AR & sOHAE
AR P 5 R B AT R (] 48 /1Ny i 228 72 A4 )
IR I 153 2 5 5 A 0 ) S L R B
G A BR 2 R (Hbtik 7 7 V5 847 52 J O R 28
GEAFHIE b0 264) o AR o

3. ABESURERSAREEIHIRESR - BUEM
SRR SR TR 5 R HE i A 8 W) R
T AR - DARMERCHE ROEAT IR My o FE
07 SEAEART BR300 B AT A A 2 ) 9 e £
(PR AR 2 ) W B w38 7T 7 4T ) B A7y
Frob) -

4. ABHESCRZAYEE STHPRGREE » HE IR
WY (A G AT sz SRR s ST T IRy
TEBEAE 8 J B R T UL T 7 78 28 W) R A A)
5 U 1 P A7 o 5 T R sl S L T
HUE P EOR > DLaRAS A Rl RO 4R 2 1)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Head office and principal place of

business in Hong Kong:
Rooms 601-603 and 605
Southmark
No. 11 Yip Hing Street
Wong Chuk Hang
Aberdeen

Hong

Notes:

Kong

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxy to attend and, subject to the
provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, vote in

his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited together with a power of
attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power or authority, at the office of the Company’s Hong Kong branch
registrar, Tricor Tengis Ltd, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding

the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

In relation to the proposed resolutions nos. 4 and 6 above, approval is being
sought from the shareholders of the Company for the grant to the Directors of a
general mandate to authorise the allotment and issue of shares under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors have no immediate plan to issue any new shares of
the Company other than shares which may fall to be issued under the share option

scheme of the Company.

In relation to the proposed resolution no. 5 above, the Directors wish to state
that they will exercise the powers conferred thereby to repurchase shares in
circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders of
the Company. An explanatory statement containing the information necessary to
enable the shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision to vote on
the proposed resolution as required by the GEM Listing Rules will be set out in a
separate document to be despatched to the shareholders of the Company with the

annual report for the year ended 30 April 2008.
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